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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

At the beginning of year, the Group was principally engaged
in the businesses of (1) e-commerce and provision of
online sales platform; and (2) professional IT contract and
maintenance services business. During the year, the Group
has decided to cease to engage its professional IT contract
and maintenance services business and disposed of this
business.

E-commence and Provision of Online sales
platform Business

Over the past year, facing the complex and uncertain global
economy, changing foreign exchange rate and challenge
from national development and reformation, China’s exports
and imports were under pressure. The e-commerce industry
was confronted with innovatory challenges, as plenty of
domestic e-commerce entferprises have tapped into the
cross-border e-commerce business, and downstream
delivery companies moved upwards in the industrial chain to
expand info the cross-border e-commerce frading business.
The Group’s sales performance tumbled under the keen
competition, and recorded a fall in the businesses for the
year ended 30 June 2015 (the "Year”) as compared to last
year.

The revenue of the Group was mainly driven by its B2C
foreign frade e-commerce website, namely DX.com
("DX"). The revenue of the Group suffered a larger decline
comparing with last year. Such a decline was attributed
mainly to the intensifying industrial competition, with curbed
consumer senfiment caused by instable macro economy
indirectly. Moreover, consumers have furned their focus
fo overseas markets since the devaluation of Euro, Yen
and other currencies. Meanwhile, the cost of e-commerce
business increased and sales revenue of cross-border
business declined.

As one of the world’s leading online shopping websites, DX’s
loyal consumers spanned across over 200 countries and
regions. The Company has been penetrating the domestic
foreign language markets by launching different language
sites. The current 12 languages websites cover approximately
2.7 billion population in the world. During the Year, the Group
confinued to implement the ‘“localization” business strategy
by launching the languages of Finnish and Norwegian on its
online sales platform in order to expand the sales network.
DX has also launched new domestic payment channels
including Euro and local credit cards in Brazil, to expand its
customer coverage to European countries where e-commerce
is highly developed and offer convenient payment methods
to customers in Latin America.
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To relieve the operation pressure, the Group has ceased
some unprofitable businesses. Meanwhile, to cope with the
infense competition and countervail the customer churn due
to the instability of exchange rates, the Group is devoted
tfo creating convenient and user-friendly online shopping
experience. Keeping abreast of the innovative technology
frends, the Group’s product feam confinues to seek new and
intferesting products from the market, satisfying the clients at
all times. Besides electronic products, DX actively expands
market and customer groups by discovering new products,
such as fashion goods, household products and so on. In
addition, the website provides free worldwide shipping to
attract consumers with a fast and convenient shopping
experience and enhance local consumers’ satisfaction.

With the extensive usage of smart phones and 4G networks,
DX has launched the iPhone, Android and iPad apps. With
cell phones or tablets, consumers can place order, check
order status and keep up with the lafest tfrend through the
DX’s mobile app at all times, creating a fluid and convenient
experience for users.

During the Year, to focus its resources on the development of
DX's core business, the Group devoted extensive resources
in areas including back-end system upgrade and shopping
process optimization. Meanwhile, the Group planned to
allocate more resources to the apps on mobile devices and
tablets under the e-commerce business segment with a view
to enhance the future long-term growth and strengthen the
business foundation.

Professional IT contract and maintenance
services business

During the Year, the Group announced to sell a wholly-
owned subsidiary principally engaged in the provision of
professional IT confract and maintenance services, to devote
extensive resources in its core business (E-commerce and
provision of online sales platform business). The completion
took place on 31 August 2015 and the Group no longer
engaged in provision of professional IT confract and
maintenance services business.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the global e-commerce business is at its
rapid development stage. According fo the report published
by a global consulting firm Accenture and Ali Research in
2015, the global B2C cross-border e-commerce market will
increase in size to USST trillion in 2020 from US$2.3 billion
in 2014. The report forecasted that number of consumers
directly ordering from overseas retailers will increase at a
CAGR of 27.4% in the next five years. By 2020, there will be
over 900 million international online shoppers around the
world. Leveraging on fthe rapid development of emerging
markets, the Group will capture any market opportunities
fo provide quality “localized” services that suit local
circumstances, optimize the logisfic system and shorten the
delivery time to further increase its market share.

The cross-border e-commerce breaks the monopoly of
importers, wholesalers, distributors and retailers under
fraditional foreign trade pattern, providing enterprises
and consumers the possibilities to get higher profitability
and lower product prices respectively. In recent years,
government, investment organizations and consumers have
devoted considerable attention to the industry. The Chinese
government actively promoted the strategy and frame
work of “one belt, one road”, benefitting from the resource
endowment of countries along the line. With the strong
mutual complements in economy among different countries,
the presence of "Made in China” products are rapidly
spreading globally. The strategy of “one belt, one road”
greatly facilitates the export to Europe, which can stabilize
DX’s current market share in Europe and accelerate its
expansion. E-commerce is now playing an important role in
the transformation and upgrading of foreign trade industry.
With a forward-looking sight, DX is devoted to exporting
Chinese-made products to overseas.

The Group will continue to implement the localisation
strategy. By pushing forward the “multi-languages, mulfi-
payment channels diversified products and regionalized
precise marketing” business strategy that suit local
circumstances and enfrenching its predominance, the Group
aims to provide consumers with the best online shopping
experience.
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In addition, to diversify our business and strive for the best B#%  ATHEEXEBZ Tt ARRATKRERHS
return for the shareholders of the company, the Group would  {EBIH @ AEE B EZERELIEETRAEEE
consider making various investments including but not & & sk Fii k3 ETES - ILETETHEHUK
limited to quality funds and/or unlisted and listed securities. AR - AR HEINEIR - AR O EBTIALR
This approach not only diversifies the sources of income, % ' WMIEFAAEEBHEFES -

but also provides additional resources to finance its core

business, which in furn enhance the Group’s competitive

edges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 30 June 2015 (the “Year”), the Group
generated a revenue from confinuing operation of
approximately HK$749,660,000 (2014: HK$1,166,050,000),
representing a decrease of 35.7% over the same period
in 2014. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
keen competition in e-commerce industry and decreased
consumer sentiment which caused by global economy
instability.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately HK$87,003,000 for the Year
while the loss aftributable to the owners of the Company in
the last year was approximately HK$70,910,000.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$86,912,000
in this year as compared to the last year of approximately
HKS$70,676,000, representing an increase of about 23.0%,
which was mainly due fo the following reasons:

the fluctuation of the worldwide economy and keen
competition in the market leading to a decrease in
the revenue from the e-commerce business of the
Group;

(@

an impairment loss of approximately HK$10,242,000 on
available-for-sales investment as at 30 June 2015;

®)

©) The total expenses from continuing operation (except
the costs of sales) for the Year were HK$374,120,000
(2014: HK$525,076,000), representing a decrease of
28.7% over the same period in 2014, which was mainly
due to (i) the drop in the sales orders led the selling
and distribution expenses dropped accordingly, and
(i) a provision of HK$46,878,000 for a litigation was
made in last year, but no significant accrual was

made in the current year; and

an impairment loss of approximately HK$36,394,000
arising from the disposal ("EPRO BVI Disposal”) of EPRO
(BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries (other than EPRO
Systems Limited, a subsidiary of the Company) ("EPRO
BVI Group”) taking into account of the difference
between the net asset value of the EPRO BVI Group as
at 30 June 2015 and the estimated final consideration
for the EPRO BVI Disposal, and the details of the EPRO
BVI Disposal are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 April 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 21 July 2015.

(@

The income tax expenses for the Group of the Year were
HK$409,000 (2014: HK$6,799,000).
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Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operations with internally
resources and banking and other facilities provided by
banks and otfher financial institution. The Group would also
raise fund by various activities. The Group continued to exert
stringent control over treasury policies.

On 8 July 2014, the Company completed an open offer of
509,451,557 offer shares at a subscription price of HKS$0.10
on the basis of one offer share for every ten existing shares
held. The net proceeds from the open offer, after deducting
directly attributable costs were approximately HK$49,851,000.
Details of the open offer were disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 13 June 2014. The proceeds were used up
in financing the working capital of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, the interest rate of banking and other
facilities were charged at the Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate (HIBOR) plus 2% and the Benchmark Lending Rate of the
People’s Bank of China less 5% per annum respectively (2014:
HIBOR plus 2% and Benchmark Lending Rate of the People’s
Bank of China less 5%). Note payables was charged at the
rate of 9% per annum (2014: Nil).

As at 30 June 2015, the amount of bank borrowing of
the Group which were repayable within one year was
HK$10,000,000 (2014: HK$10,000,000), and there has no other
borrowings of the Group which will be repayable more than
one year (2014: Nil).

Save as the above, the capital structure of the Company
had no material changes.
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Other Fund Raising Activity

On 11 May 2015, the Group announced that, the Company
as the issuer and Convoy Asset Management Limited as the
placing agent ("Placing Agent”), entered info a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed
fo act as placing agent of the Company, to procure the
placee(s) independent of, to subscribe for the 9% per
annum notes (the "Notfes”) to be issued by the Company
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$200,000,000
matfuring on the first anniversary of the issue date of the
Notes at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the Notes ("Placing”). The board announced
that, the Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 and HK$30,000,000 were issued on 29 May
2015 and 30 June 2015 respectively, and the Nofes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$21,700,000 were
further issued ("Notfes Issue”) on 10 June 2015. Details of
the Placing and Noftes Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 May 2015, 29 May 2015, 10 June
2015 and 30 June 2015 respectively. Completion of the
Notes Issue has taken place and the net proceeds from the
Notes Issue will be used to finance any potential investment
opportunities of the Group that may arise from time to time
and for the general working capital of the Group.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

The Group has the following material acquisitions and
disposals during the Year.

(i) On 10 June 2014, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for disposal of 100%
equity interest in e-Perfect IT Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a cash
consideration of HK$48 million, which shall be satisfied
by the allotment and issue, credited as fully paid, of
186,046,500 of new shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of GET Holdings Limited (formerly known as M
Dream Inworld Limited), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability and whose shares of which are listed on GEM
(stock code: 8100) ("GET Holdings”), at an issue price of
approximately HK$0.258 per share by GET Holdings (the
“e-Perfect Disposal”). Details of the e-Perfect Disposal are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 10
June 2014.

The e-Perfect Disposal had completed on 31 July 2014.
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(i) On 21 April 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent third party for the
disposal of 100% equity interest in EPRO (BVI) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (except for EPRO Systems Limited) at a
consideration of HKS$40 million, subject to upwards
adjustments with a maximum consideratftion of
HK$120 million (the "EPRO BVI Disposal”). Following
the completion of EPRO BVI Disposal, the Group no
longer (no matter directly or indirectly) holds any
equity interests in EPRO (BVI) Limited and its certain
subsidiaries, and EPRO (BVI) Limited has ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, the Group
has ceased to be engaged in provision of professional
IT confract and maintenance services immediately after
the completion. Details of the EPRO BVI Disposal are set
out respectively in the announcements dated 21 April
2015, 16 July 2015, 6 August 2015 and 31 August 2015
and circular dated 21 July 2015 of the Company.

The EPRO BVI Disposal had completed on 31 August
2015.

Save as the above, the Company had no other significant
investments and material acquisitions or disposals for the
Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by
internally generated cash flow, proceeds from issue of shares
and Notes Issue and banking and other facilities provided by
banks and other financial institution.

As at 30 June 2015, the consolidated shareholders’ equity,
current assets and net current assets of the Group were
HK$116,559,000 (2014: HK$152,819,000), HK$305,191,000
(2074: HK$334,992,000) and HK$71,151,000 (2014:
HK$151,278,000) respectively.

In respect of the Group’s ftofal current assefs of
HK$305,191,000 as at 30 June 2015 (2014: HK$334,992,000),
frade receivable (net of provision for doubtful debts)
accounted for 0.1% (2014: 27.9%) whilst pledged deposits,
cash and cash equivalents accounted for about 27.5% (2014
32.2%). As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s pledged deposits
amounted to HK$19,983,000 (2014: HK$19,728,000) and cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$63,741,000 (2014:
HK$88,293,000).
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As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s consolidated bank
borrowings repayable within one year were HK$10,000,000
(2074: HK$10,000,000) and note payables within one year
were HK$81,700,000 (2014: Nil), and there has no other
borrowings repayable more than one year (2014: Nil).

The Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
and bank borrowing were denominated in Australian
dollars, Canadian dollars, Hong Kong dollars, British pounds,
Renminbi, Euro and US dollars.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had an aggregafte composite
banking facilities from banks borrowing of approximately
HK$20,300,000 and RMB15,000,000 respectively (2014:
HK$20,300,000 and RMB30,000,000), of which HK$10,000,000
and RMB13,655,000 were utilised (2014: HK$10,000,000).

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio
of total liabilities over total assets was 66.8% (2014: 56.0%).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in
Australian dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Singapore
dollars, Canadian dollars, British pounds, Euro and US dollars.

In accordance with the Group’s conservative treasury policy,
the Group did not enter any derivative product for hedging
during the Year. But, the Group will keep on monitoring the
foreign currency risk and consider any fool for hedging if
necessary.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group has no outstanding foreign
exchange contracts (2014: The Group entered intfo a
forward currency contract with bank with nominal amount of
US$8,300,000 against RMB).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group

Except for the disclosures in notes 38 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2015.
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The Company

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the Company had confingent
liabilities in respect of corporate unlimited guarantees for
banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. At the end
of the reporting period, HK$10,000,000 of such facilities was
utilised by a subsidiary (2014: HK$10,000,000).

Charges on Assets

As at 30 June 2015, the banking facilities of the Group are
secured by:

(i) corporate unlimited guarantees executed by the
Company; and

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits

amounting to approximately HK$19,983,000 (2014:

HK$19,728,000).

Included in the prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of HK$118,313,000 were the balances of US$5,020,000
(equivalents to approximately HK$39,156,000) (the “Frozen
Accounts”) (2014: US$20,000 equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000), which were frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and
the PayPal. The Frozen Accounts were temporarily restrained
the use up as the Group was involved in a litigation, detail,
of which are stated in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statement.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2015, the number of staff of the Group was
1,266 (2014: 1,338). Staff remuneration is reviewed once
a year, or as the management considers appropriate.
Changes in remuneration are based on a range of factors
including the Group’s performance, the competitiveness
of remuneration with the external market, and individual
employee’s performance during the Year. Employees were
paid at fixed remuneration with discretionary bonus and
benefits of medical insurance, mandatory provident fund,
share options and necessary training.
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Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of
the senior management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang, aged 50, is the chairman of the
Group, compliance officer and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang is also a director of Virtus Foundation
Limited. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for
overall strategy planning, management and development
of the Group. Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience
in the management of various companies which invest
mainly on the IT and electronic industry. He has solid
experiences in tfrade and business in the People’s Republic
of China, Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang studied
in the Physics Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the
People’s Republic of China from 1983 to 1986. Mr. Huang is a
director of China Dynamic Enterprises Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, aged 45, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive director and a member of
the Remuneration committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 2000 and is responsible for development of
Group’s software ftechnology and methodology. Mr. Chow
has over 20 years of experience in the IT industry and has
worked for key IT solution providers before joining the Group.
He graduated from Victoria University (formerly known as
Victoria University of Technology), Australia, with a Bachelor’s
degree and a Master’'s degree in Computer Science. He also
holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration.

Non-executive Director

Mr. MENG Hu, aged 41, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Meng joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Meng
was an executive director of the Company from August
2010 to May 2015 and the co-chairman of the Group from
August 2013 to May 2015. He is experienced in corporate
management and investment. Mr. Meng holds a bachelor’s
degree in electronic engineering from Tsinghua University
and a Master’'s Degree of Business Administration from Peking
University.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Fong had obtained a bachelor's degree
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a master's degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong
has gained more than 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance area and serviced the private and
listed public companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. ZHU Zhi, aged 38, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Zhu completed a three-year professional
course in mobile communications at the Beijing University
of Posts and Telecommunications and he has obtained a
Master of Science in mobile communication systems from the
University of Surrey, United Kingdom. Mr. Zhu is experienced
in mobile communication and corporate management.

Mr. LIN Xicofeng, aged 42, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lin has obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Southern Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lin has been an executive director of AUPU
Group Holdings Company Limited ("AUPU") (Stock Code:
477). the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from August 2011 fo September 2013 and
has been redesignated as a non-executive director of AUPU
since September 2013. Mr. Lin has extensive experience in
finance and venture capital investment.

Mr. HUNG Kenneth, aged 44, is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree of
bachelor of science awarded by Woodbury University in
June 1995. He has extensive experience in the entertainment
industry. From July 2012 to October 2013, Mr. Hung was
the business development director for Star Alliance Movies
(Beijing) Co., Ltd., Mr. Hung is an executive director of China
Mobile Games and Cultural Investment Limited (Stock Code:
8081) and independent non-executive directors of China
Demeter Investments Limited (Stock Code: 8120) and IR
Resources Limited (formerly known as China Asean Resources
Limited) (Stock Code: 8186), the shares of the above three
companies are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Kin Fai, aged 42, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Manchester
Business School of University of Manchester, United Kingdom.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group was principally engaged in e-commence
and provision of online sales platform and in provision of
professional IT contract and maintenance services. During
the year, the Group has decided to cease fo engage its
professional IT contract and maintenance services business
and disposed of this business.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF DOMICILE

On 6 August 2015, the change of domicile of the Company
from Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration
in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda ("Change of Domicile”)
and to adopt Memorandum of Continuance and Bye-laws
("Bye-laws”) in connection with the Change of Domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The Change
of Domicile and the adoption of the Memorandum of
Continuance and Bye-laws became effective on 20 August
2015 (Bermuda time).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 41 to 151.

The directors did not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as exiracted
from the audited consolidated financial statementfs and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 152.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of
the Company during the Year are setf outf in nofes 32 and 33
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company/Bye-laws or the laws
of the Cayman Islands/Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company fo offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company’s
distributable reserves are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 16% (2014: 10%) of
the total sales for the Year and the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 13% (2014: 8%).

Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 77% (2014: 82%) of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 26% (2014: 26%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) during
the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LUO Jia
(resigned on 25 July 2014)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MENG Hu

(re-designated from executive director on 18 May 2015)
Mr. JIN Ge

(appointed on 25 July 2014 and resigned on 18 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. LI Guanbao
(resigned on 18 May 2015)
Mr. ZHU Zhi
Mr. LIN Xiacofeng
Mr. LAM Kit Sun
(resigned on 15 January 2015)
Mr. HUNG Kenneth
(appointed on 15 January 2015)

In accordance with clause 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. CHOW
Siu Kwong, Mr. ZHU Zhi and Mr. LIN Xicofeng shall retire atf
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday, 27 November 2015 (the "2015 AGM"). All of the above
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the said meeting.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to
16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2015 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneratfion are subject fo shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are
recommended by the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and determined by the Board with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the result of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party tfransactions and connected
fransactions disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no director had a material inferest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entfered info or existed during
the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (THE "SFO")

A.  DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2015, the inferests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares of the Company and ifs associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as ofherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by directors of the Company as referred fo in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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EERFETBAE
R-B—RAFANAZ+E ARFAEERE
ETRABRARAREMEY AR (EER
BH R EEOIEXVE) 2 B A AR
AR BB E B 5 B K (6 5] 3521575 B
2B IR AIZAR b R A1 85,4614
FRARRAEFETEE NEBLEENE
RARRMRA 2 ERRHABWT

1. Interests in shares of the Company 1. RAEAZNGIRIGZ #zm
Number of Percentage
ordinary shares of issued
Long position/ interested share capital*
Name of director Capacity Short position RERRZ Note HERT
B3y &% e/ %8 LERHA Mg REBAL*
Mr. HUANG Shaokang Beneficial owner Long 189,156,000 3.38%
BOREE EnBEEA H#E
Inferest of controlled Long 930,963,636 Q] 16.61%
corporation e
RIEH AR
Total:
A 1,120,119,636 19.99%
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong Beneficial owner Long 3,168,000 0.06%
AkKEE EGBEAA H#E
Note: s -
1.  These 930,963,636 shares of the Company were 1. 3% %930,963,636 AR 7 M H A

held by China Dynamic Enterprises Limited (“China
Dynamic”), a corporation wholly controlled by Mr.
HUANG Shaokang. Accordingly, Mr. Huang was
deemed to be interested in 930,963,636 shares of the
Company held by China Dynamic pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

China Dynamic Enterprises Limited
([ China Dynamic ]) # & ' China
DynomiclEE D REESEHE ©
bt RIRE S KB E GO EXVE - =
% £ 18 AR China Dynomioﬁﬂ%ﬁ
2930 963,636% AR X R AR 19 R HE B 1E
ZAEDHIEEG D TBRE
BRUARRBRIR=ZE—RFRA
THZEEITRHEA -

The percentage represents the number of
ordinary shares interested divided by the
number of issued shares of the Company as at
30 June 2015.
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2. Interests in shares of the associated
corporation of the Company

No such interest was reported by the directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant fo Section 352 of the SFO, or as ofherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo the
required standard of dealings by directors of the Company
as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2015, the following parties had interests
of 5% or more in the shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial Long position/

2. RMABZEZ R #E
R Sid EL B £

%
B EXPBEBEEN R_E-—RAFA=1TH"
AAREFLETBITHABMERARFHEA
MAEEAE (E&RESRBMEGRGIEXVE) 2 &
7 HBERMIESFTEARIALRAREE
FEBMEGRIIEB2GTUFEZECMA 2
BYORE - RIBRIEEI R £ TR R ES. 461 T
ARAEZETEE ZREREARNAR A K
ZPTER R S EAR -

B. FERK
RZZE—RENA=Z+H U TALTBREE
ENEEIENEIBVMEEEARANEEZE
a0 BT RC 8k A AR R &) PR 9 P HE B 5% A

Number of ordinary
shares interested

Percentage of issued

Notes share capital*

shareholder Capacity Short position
TERREH L) #R/ KR
Ms. YIP Chi Yu Inferest of spouse Long
EEmut [T e
China Dynamic Beneficial owner Long
EREBA 2
ChangAn Investment Beneficial owner Long
Holdings Il Limited EREEA He
(*ChangAn Investment”)
IDG-Accel China Growth Interest of controlled Long
Fund II L.P. corporation e
WREH 2Bz 5
IDG-Accel China Growth Inferest of controlled Long
Fund II Associates LP. corporations HE
REEHZFEZER
IDG-Accel China Growth Inferest of controlled Long
Fund GP Il Associates Ltd. corporations e
('IDG") REAH LRz # 5
Mr. HO Chi Sing Interest of controlled Long
HO Chi SingZt & corporations HE
REASZEEZ R
Mr. ZHOU Quan Inferest of controlled Long
A2%4E corporations HE

DX.com Holdings Limited

REEH 2 EE 2%

DX.comiZ R B IR 1 7]

BERZCERREA i3 EERTRARA L
1,120,119,636 M 19.99%
930,963,636 @ 16.61%
655,847,471 ®) 11.70%
655,847,471 @) 11.70%
655,847,471 @) 11.70%
655,847,471 @) 11.70%
655,847,471 @) 11.70%
655,847,471 ®) 11.70%
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Notes:

1. Ms. YIP Chi Yu was deemed to be interested in
1,120,119,636 shares of the Company through the
interests of her spouse, Mr. HUANG Shaokang,
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These 930,963,636 shares of the Company were held
by China Dynamic, a corporation wholly confrolled
by Mr. HUANG Shaokang. Such interest was also
disclosed as the inferest of Mr. Huang in the above
paragraph under "Disclosure of Interests under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance - A. Directors
and Chief Executives”.

3. These 655,847,471 shares of the Company were held
by ChangAn Investment. ChangAn Investment was
confrolled as to 92.44% by IDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Il L.P. which was wholly controlled by IDG-Accel
China Growth Fund Il Associates L.P.. IDG-Accel China
Growth Fund Il Associates L.P. was wholly controlled by
IDG, which was in turn controlled by Mr. ZHOU Quan
and Mr. HO Chi Sing. Accordingly, IDG-Accel China
Growth Fund II L.P., IDG-Accel China Growth Fund I
Associates L.P., IDG, Mr. ZHOU Quan and Mr. HO Chi
Sing were deemed to be interested in 655,847,471
shares held by ChangAn Investment pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary
shares interested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, so
far as is known to any director or chief executive of
the Company, no person, other than the directors
whose interests are set out in the above paragraph
under “"Disclosure of Interests under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance - A. Directors and
Chief Executives”, had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of Interests under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”,
at no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentfures of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 year or age, or were any rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of ifs
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable fo the
directors of the Company to acquire such rights in any other
body corporation.
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1. REBHRHERKROEXVE  EX0xLS
BEEBELRELEZEEWHEARARR
21,120,119,6360% J& 0 B #E2S ©

2. % %930,963,636/% & 2 & & 1 AChina
Dynamic# & ' China Dynamice & 4 &
FEDEEG - AEBRNER EXRIE
BERAEKOEXNVIEEEZR - AES
REBTHRAB| —BEBARELEZ o

3. %655,847,471 A2 Bl i 19 EChangAn
Investment## - ChangAn Investmentes
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P.#2
92 44%# %5+ MIDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Il L.P.HIDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Il Associates L.P.2# 4l - IDG-
Accel China Growth Fund Il Associates
LP.HIDGE#EZES| - MIDGH A2 % &£ KHO
Chi SingZe 4124 - At - BIEFHFRBAE
1& ] EXVEL - IDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Il L.P. - IDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Il Associates L.P., IDG - &% % &
EHO Chi Sing’t 4 # 18 & KR ChangAn
Investmentf 15 & 2 655,847,471 8% iR {5
ME#ER -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors, initial management shareholders or
their respective associates of the Company has an interest

in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD
Details of the events after the end of the reporting period of

the Group are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

There has been no change of auditors in the past three
years. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ascenda Cachet
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the 2015 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 September 2015
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The directors present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate transparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to
the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2014 to
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company as well as the details of the foregoing deviations
are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

ATl. Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in ifs Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of
creafing value to shareholders, and on behalf of the
shareholders, overseeing the Company’s financial
performance. All directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliance with the standards
of applicable laws and regulations, take decisions
objectively and acts in the interests of the Company
and ifs shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
tfransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of inferests), financial information, appointment of
directors and otfher significant financial and operational
maftters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses, upon reasonable request made
to the Board.

EEREBE_TOFRAA=tTHIEFEZDL
KERWME -
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FEeEE R TR (TREERTA]) MEZRA
BT TGN - ARARZETEEEERRAR
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ZHBRE - MAEEHEITZ AT
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has fo be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
intfo by the foregoing officers and senior management.

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2015, the Board comprised the following
directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong

(Chairman of the Board)
(Chief Executive Officer and Member
of the Remuneration Committee)

Non-executive director:
Mr. MENG Hu

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. ZHU Zhi

Mr. LIN Xicofeng

Mr. HUNG Kenneth

For the period from 1 July 2014 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Through active participation in Board meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

| DX.comiZRER A A
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The biographical details of the directors of the Company
are set out under "Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies” in this annual report. None of the members
of the Board is related to one another.

The Company has received a written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his independence pursuant fo the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to
be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

During the year under review, Mr. HUANG Shaokang
and Mr. MENG Hu (resigned as the Co-chairman of the
Company and re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director on 18 May 2015) have acted
as Co-chairmen of the Board and each has assumed
the roles of Chairman, they provided leadership for the
Board and are responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. With the support of the
senior management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at the Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed in a fimely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, who
focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally.
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Each of the non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years. Mr. FONG
Fuk Wai is appointed for a term of 2 years whereas the
other non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors are appointed for 1 year.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association/
Bye-laws, all directors of the Company are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
general meeting affer appointment. Accordingly, Mr.
CHOW Siu Kwong, Mr. ZHI Zhi and Mr. LIN Xiaofeng shall
retire by rotation at the 2015 AGM pursuant to the Bye-
laws. All the above directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2015 AGM. The Board
and the Nomination Committee recommended their re-
appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information
of the above directors as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All directors of the Company receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment, so as to
ensure understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and directors’ responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors of the Company are confinually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime,
and the business and market changes fto facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Contfinuing briefings and professional
development for directors will be arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company has
provided reading materials on regulatory update to
all the directors for their reference and studying at the
Company’s expenses.
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A6. Directors’ Attendance Records
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The attendance records of each director at the Board EEEFHEARARBEZE_ZT—HF <A
and Board committee meetings and the general :+E¢$T$fi2§$§§%&§$ 8
meetings of the Company held during the year ended eeFLREASHNHEELHENHET :

30 June 2015 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings
HEE/EEHUE
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Esng B8 EREES ¥yMZzEg REZEE REBFAE

Executive directors:

HiTEE

Mr. HUANG Shaokang 2/12 - - 1/1

"EOREE

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 11/12 2/2 - 1/1

B R

Mr. LUO Jia (Note 1) 0/0 - - 0/0

BEETEMED

Non-executive direcfors:

FHTEE

Mr. MENG Hu (Note 2) 8/12 - - 1/1

mREE (M E2)

Mr. JIN Ge (Nofte 3) /11 - 0/1 0/1

SREE(H73)

Independent non-execuftive directors:

BUHHTEE

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai 12/12 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1

FRERE

Mr. LI Guanbao (Note 4) 8/12 3/4 2/2 2/2 0/1

TBREE(WF4)

Mr. ZHU Zhi 1/12 0/4 0/2 0/2 0/1

Mr. LIN Xiaofeng 2/12 2/4 1/2 1/2 0/1

MBI 5 &

Mr. LAM Kit Sun (Note 5) 5/6 2/2 0/1 0/1 1/1

BT 5 & (M 725)

Mr. HUNG Kenneth (Note 6) 5/5 2/2 0/0 0/0 0/0

REREE (K 76)

Notes: MEsE -

(1) Mr. LUO Jia resigned as a director of the Company on 25 m fé‘é;éﬁi)?\fj Eitﬁ +HRHEBER
July 2074. No meeting was held from 1 July 2014 fo the NEEEHE - B @itﬁ] HiEEHE
date of his resignation. TEH - Iﬁ$ﬂEﬁ S -

(2) Mr. MENG Hu has been re-designated from an executive 2) ZEREAER-ZFT-AFAATN\EHEARA
director to a non-executive director of the Company with HMITESHTARIEHTES -
effect from 18 May 2015.

(3) Mr. JIN Ge was appointed and resigned as a director QB) @REESIR-_ZF—MNFLA :JrﬁEl&
of the Company on 25 July 2014 and 18 May 2015 —T-AFRATN\BEZEREEAR
respectively. A fotal of 11 Board meetings, 1 Nomination N Ef&i%i&ﬂﬁﬂti,ﬁﬂfﬂﬁﬂ E
Committee meeting and 1 annual general meeting were BOEGHNKESS CIRRBEEE®
held from the date of his appointment to the date of his ﬁ,,i&],/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj:ﬁ °
resignation.

(4) Mr. LI Guanbao resigned as a director of the Company 4) ZTBREEN-_FT-RFEFRA+TN\ABEIAXR

on 18 May 2015. A total of 12 Board meetings, 4 Audit
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings, 2 Nomination Committee meetings and 1 annual
general meeting were held from 1 July 2014 to the date of
his resignation.

AREE-B_FT-—NELH— EI»*LEZF;E%
THH BRETAHI2ZREEFEEE 4R
ERZEEEE 2/)\%%%%@@%\2}2
REZESEZERIABRFBEARS -
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(6) Mr. LAM Kit Sun resigned as a director of the Company
on 15 January 2015. A total of 6 Board meetings, 2 Audit
Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting,
1 Nomination Committee meeting and 1 annual general
meeting were held from 1 July 2014 to the date of his

resignation.

Mr. HUNG Kenneth was appointed as a director of the
Company on 15 January 2015. A total of 56 Board meetings
and 2 Audit Committee meetings were held from the date
of his appointment to 30 June 2015.

©)

Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s
securities (the "Own Code") on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required
Standard of Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been
made of the Company’s directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Required Standard of Dealings
and the Own Code throughout the year ended 30 June
2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings
(the "Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees”) for securities transactions by employees
who are likely fo be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Code for Securities Transactions by
Relevant Employees by the employees was noted by the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written fterms
of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website "www.dxholdings.com” and on the GEM
website “www.hkgem.com”. All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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BT1. Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2015, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a total of five members, being four
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr.
LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. HUNG Kenneth and one executive
director of the Company, namely, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong.
The majority of the Remuneration Committee members
are independent non-executive directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of directors
and members of senior management (i.e. the model
described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remunerafion will be determined by reference fo the
performance of the individual and the Company as well
as market practice and conditions.

During the Year under review, the Remuneration
Committee has generally reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and reviewed
the remuneration package of directors and senior
management of the Company.

The atftendance records of each Committee member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year ended 30 June 2015 are setf out in section A6
above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 30 June 2015
is set out below:

Remuneration band (HKS$)
AR (BT)

Nil - 1,000,000 Z - 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above 1,000,001 &2 A £

Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set
out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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B2. Audit Committee

DX.com Holdings Limited

As at 30 June 2015, the Audit Committee comprised
a fotal of four members, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
(Chairman), Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. HUNG
Kenneth, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee also possesses the appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main dufies of the Audit Committee are reviewing
the financial information and reports of the Group
and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditors before submission to the Board; reviewing
the relationship with and the terms of appointment
of the external auditors and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the consolidated financial statements, resulfs
announcements and reports for the year ended 30
June 2014, for the three months ended 30 September
2014, for the six months ended 31 December 2014
and for the nine months ended 31 March 2015; the
financial reporting and compliance procedures; the
report from the management on the Company’s internal
contfrol and risk management review and process;
the arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible improprieties; and considered the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The external auditors have attended two of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2015, without the presence of executive directors,
to discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising
from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The attendance records of each Committee member
at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
ended 30 June 2015 are set out in section A6 above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the

Audit Committee regarding the appointment of external
auditors.
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B3. Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2015, the Nomination Committee
comprised a tfotal of four members, namely Mr. FONG
Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and
Mr. HUNG Kenneth, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors; and making
recommendations tfo the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference fo
certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity,
experience, skills, professional knowledge and the
amount of time and effort that a candidate will devote
to carry his/her duties and responsibilities. External
recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
tfo the requirements for the business of the Group;
recommended the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 28 November 2014; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. JIN Ge as a non-executive director
and Mr. HUNG Kenneth as an independent non-
executive director and assessment of the independence
of all the Company’s independent non-executive
directors.
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The Board has adopted the "Board Diversity Policy”
sefting out the approach to diversity on the Board. It
is believed that a truly diverse board will include and
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industrial experience, background, gender and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences
will be taken intfo account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for setting annually measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommends them to the Board for adoption.
The "Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, fo ensure its
effectiveness.

The atftendance records of each Committee member
at the Nomination Committee meeting held during
the year ended 30 June 2015 are setf out in section A6
above.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the
tfraining and contfinuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Required Standard of Dealings and the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of quarterly,
inferim and annual reports, inside information
announcements and other disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The management has provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the
Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability fo confinue as a going concern.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system and for reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The
senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and
reports on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 is
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’
Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited,
the Company’s external auditors, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
June 2015 are analyzed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditors
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Fees paid/payable (HK$)

Audit services - audit fee for the year ended
30 June 2015
Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating
fo the special audit, working capital
forecast review fee and
profit forecast review fee

TOTAL:

g/ ELER(ER)
ERRE-#HE_T—0F
NAZTALFEZERE 840,000
FEZRE -HERBE
—HIEEG  EEESEA
AFEEHZEAR
FMEBEAERER 275,000
BEr 1,115,000

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relafions and investors’ understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognizes the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.
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The Company mainfains a website at www.dxholdings.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written
enquiries or requests to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit 01, 3/F., Hing Yip
Commerical Centre, 272-284 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meeting to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
tfo convene a special general meeting pursuant
fo clause 58 of the Bye-laws by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The objects of the meefing must be
stated in the written requisition.

(2) Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of
the requisition or not less than 100 shareholders
may put forward a proposal at a shareholders’
meeting, pursuant to the laws of Bermuda by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The proposal
should be stated in the written requisition and such
written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make
necessary arrangement (in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and in case of any
other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting).
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(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant fo
clause 85 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send
a written notice, duly signed by the shareholder,
of his/her intfention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged aft the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong, or the
office of the Company’s branch share registrar.
The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence on the day after the dispaftch of the
notfice of such general meeting and end 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, nofice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as
required by laws. Shareholders may refer fo the Bye-laws
for further details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders” meetings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
after each shareholders” meeting.
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H. CHANGE OF DOMICILE

During the year under review, the Company has
not made any significant changes to the Articles of
Association.

On 6 August 2015, the change of domicile of the
Company from Cayman lIslands to Bermuda by way of
deregistration in the Cayman Islands and continuation
as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda
and to adopt Memorandum of Continuance and Bye-
laws in connection with the Change of Domicile was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.
The Change of Domicile and the adoption of the
Memorandum of Confinuance and Bye-laws of the
Company became effective on 20 August 2015
(Bermuda time). The Memorandum and Arficles of
Association of the Company ceased fo be effective
upon the Change of Domicile became effective. The
details of the adoption of Company’'s Memorandum
of Contfinuance and Bye-laws are disclosed on the
Company’s announcements dated 19 June 2015, 6
August 2015 and 21 August 2015 and the Company’s
circular dated 10 July 2015. An updated version of the
Company’s Memorandum of Continuance and Bye-laws
is available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 September 2015

DX.com Holdings Limited
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To the shareholders of DX.com Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and re-domiciled
and continued on 21 August 2015 in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of DX.com Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) set out on pages 41
tfo 151, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
tfrue and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Instfitute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability fo any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by HKICPA. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider infernal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity’s
infernal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentafion of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 30 June 2015 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
23 September 2015
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CONTINUING OPERATION
REVENUE

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of losses of associates

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
FROM CONTINUING OPERATION

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Profit/ (loss) for the year
from discontinued operation
Impairment of assefs of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss affributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic - Loss for the year
- Loss from continuing operation

Diluted - Loss for the year
- Loss from confinuing operation

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Notes
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6,36

2015 2014
“B-%F —F-QmF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERL TR
(Re-stated)

(1EB5)

749,660 1,166,050
(435,802) (678,639)

313,858 487,41
4,023 707
(239.937) (346,416)
(134,183) (178,660)
(1.528) (19)
- (12
(57.767) (36.989)
(409) (6.799)
(58.176) (43,788)
7,658 (8.583)
(36,394) (18,305)
(28,736) (26,888)
(86.912) (70,676)
(87.003) (70,910)
91 234
(86.912) (70,676)

(1.56) cents #1l

(1.04) cents 4l

(1.39) cents 7l

(0.86) cents il

(1.56) cents &l

(1.04) cents &1l

(1.39) cents 7l

(0.86) cents il
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —AFENA=-+THILLFE

Loss for the year REEEE

Other comprehensive income fo be  HAli4R A WS bATE

reclassified to profit or loss eHEEENSH

in subsequent periods: RiEH:

- Exchange differences arising on — BRI INE TGRS
translation of foreign operations EECZERERE

- Decrease in fair value of —AHEEREARE
available-for-sales investment 2R (H5E20)
(Note 20)

- Reclassification adjustment to —MAIHHEREEERE
profit or loss on impairment loss BEREFRHEAE
on available-for-sales investment (FfF3£20)

(Note 20)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEZEWE

FOR THE YEAR wmEg

Total comprehensive income EiE2HEk a8
attributable to:

Owners of the Company RABEBA

Non-controlling interests IR

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7

¥ Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2015 2014
—E-FHE —T—mE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER THBT
(Re-stated)
(mE351)
(86,912) (70,676)
801 (1.343)
(10,242) -
10,242 -
(86,111) (72,019)
(86,203) (72,309)
92 290
(86,111) (72,019)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available-for-sales investment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments aft fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Deposits received in advance
Deferred revenue
Interest-bearing bank borrowing
Note payables

Tax payables

Liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable fo owners
of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
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Notes
Bt E

15
16
17

20

21
22

23
24

26
26

36

27
28

29
30

36

31

32

\

e BRI R

30June 2015 —ZE—HFA=+H

2015 2014
—ZE—EHF —T—F
HK$’ 000 HKS'\OOQ
FET FHBIT
2,810 7.691
3,900 3.900

- 420
38,698 -
45,408 12,011
- 1

393 93,381
118,313 98,859
- 1,830

- 512
19,983 19,728
63,741 88,293
202,430 302,604
102,761 32,388
305,191 334,992
25,188 16,063
67,808 135,962
7.845 13,204

- 455
10,000 10,000
81,700 -
- 5,038
192,541 180,722
41,499 2,992
234,040 183,714
71,151 151,278
116,559 163,289
- 10,470

- 10,470
116,559 152,819
56,040 50,945
59,480 100,927
115,520 151,872
1,039 947
116,559 152,819

HUANG Shaokang
BORE
Director

EFE

CHOW Siu Kwong
|5
Director

EFE
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e Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

Year ended 30 June 2015

e Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-AFAAZTHLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOARESEARE
Available
for-sales
Capital Investment  Exchange Non-
Issued Share Capital redemption revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total inferests equity
RARE  AHEE  HETE
BRARA ROBER ARG B REMBEHE fE  Regd £ FEREE  ER4E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER T#En Thr TER THER Thr THT T TER T
AFT July 2014 RZZ-mE 50,945 - (18124 3,526 - (4.934) 120459 151,872 947 152,819
thA-H
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (87.003)  (87,003) 91 (86912
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEM
income for the year: 2ENE
Exchonge difference  H#5N£KE
arising on EEZEN
translation of 8
foreign operations - - - - - 800 - 800 1 801
Decrease in fair value of A HERE
availoblefor-sales MEZRY
investment (nofe 20) (P5£20) - - - - (10,242) - - (10,242) - (10,242)
Reclossification BERBER
adjustment to profit REFAEEE
orloss on impairment — (F{20)
loss on available-for-sales
invesiment (note 20) - - - - 10,242 - - 10,242 - 10,242
Total comprehensive ~ AEE2E
income for the year hEihE - - - - - 800  (87.003)  (86,203) 92 (88111)
lssug of shares upon ~ WABBEREL
open offer (note 32(c)) Bt (H3E32(a)) 5,095 44,756 - - - - - 49,851 - 49,851
At 30 June 2015 RZE-1%
~AZtHH 56,040 44,756*  (18,124)*  3,526* - (4134)*  33456* 115,520 1,039 116,559

i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$59,480,000 (2014: HK$100,927,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

44 DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRAER 1 Al
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

Year ended 30 June 2014 HE-_Z—WNEA=THILFE

Atrioutable fo owners of the Company

RAAREREARS
Capifal  Exchange Non-
Issued Share Capital  redemption ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capifal ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

BEARA  ROEEE  AAEE RAEDRE NESBRE  REERM A FBRER  BEEE
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAR TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TR

AFT July 2013 RZF-=% 50,945 - (17.974) 3526 (9.204) 191,369 218,602 1,532 200,194
tA-8

Loss forthe year BERER - - - - -9 (0910) B (0476)
Other comprehensive ~ AEFEf

income for the year: 2ENE:

Exchange difference  BIENN KR

arising on EECENER

franslation of

foreign operations - - - - (1.399) - (1.399) 5 (1.383)

Totol comprehensive ~ AEEZE

ncomefortheyeor  Wx#E - - - Sx 091 (23M) W (2009
Release upon disposal R EME

of subsidlories NARER

(nofe 35()) (3:35(0) - - - - 5,669 - 5,669 - 5,669
Acaquisition of non- WE-ERERA

controlling inferests in &3 ERER

asubsidiary (note 18(9)  (E18() - - (150) - - - (150) @5 0.0%5)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-IE

~AZTH 50,945 - (18.124) 3,526 (4.934) 120,459 151,872 947 152,819
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value gain on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments
Gain on disposal of equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Depreciation
Write off of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment of frade
receivables
Written back of tfrade payables

Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of other infangible assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of an associate

Impairment of assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Impairment loss on
available-for-sales investment

Share of losses of associates

Decrease in inventories

Increase in frade receivables

Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease in equity investments at fair value
through profit and loss

Decrease in derivative financial instruments

Increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accrual

Decrease in deposits received in advance

(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Notes
Bt 5

REXBCRERE

BHRARH, (BB
B A
RE I E 5

ﬂ§ﬁ$ 7
FEKA 5,6
f&$ﬁﬁk%éz
MARBEREZ
%mm%% 5,6
BAFEFABRZ
tﬁ@ﬁ%%
NEEREF 56
BAFEFABREER
2SI A 56
HERAFEFAEZ
ZEMRRBRERE
2B 5,6
e 15
WEETEE 15
HEME - BE R
HEZEE 6
O ERE S
R SO E 5,6,22
JEE 5 BR R El #
RERE 16
Hia\p & ERE 17
HEHRBRARZEF 5,6,35
HEBERNRZEE 19
BHEZEEREA
BESENEERE 6,36
AEHERERERRE

=
5]

%

20
DIEHE R E 2 EE

frEA

FE 5 T

BAHE e REM

A 2O 8

AT EHABRZ DA
BER D

Bt & AR

B R 50 30

B 5008 R
COVeEL

se it i

B () /0

g %ﬁgﬁﬂ/% SHE
|
Eﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁ
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2015 2014
—E—-8f% T—NF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
THET FET
(Restated)

(@ a3
(94.161) (36,989)
5,715 (26,079)
2,369 63
(385) (57)
(29) (64)
- 371)
- (512)
(308) (429)
3,246 3,167
61 -

- 123
- (173)

(143) -

- 3,805

- 5,979
(164) (486)
204 -
36,394 18,305
10,242 -

- 12
(36.959) (33,706)
1 _
(23,891) (6.302)
(26,349) (5,303)
2,138 1,555
512 -
9,934 13,781
(36.271) 106,881
(5.359) (7,715)
(100) 1,417
(116,344) 70,608
(6.996) (44,314)
(1.053) (864)
(124,393) 25,430




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Net proceeds from disposal of an associate
Dividend received
Purchases of available-for-sales investment
Increase in pledged deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Acquisition of non-controlling interests
in a subsidiary

Proceeds from issue of shares

Inception of bank loan

Inception of note payables

Net cash flows from
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances included
in a disposal group classified as
held for sales

\
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows\.u-—r"
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Year ended 30 June 2015 & =%

RETHRERE

B YA
BEDE BER
R 2AE
HENE  BER
R 2B
HEME AR 2 FHE
B N B2 F R
RSN
BEAUHHERA
B MRFRIE

KBRS RS HFSE

METHRERE

ERAE
EE-RHMBL
FEIE Hxﬂé/\
BT FAISR0A
HIRITE N
eSS

REEH RS
P15 %58

ﬁ%&ﬁ%%fﬁlﬁﬁ
HWA) g R
i?ﬂfﬁi&fﬁi
F{EEE
INERGEE 2 HE
F R

FRASRASEHEER

RERREEEEE
EEBROM
Be RR1TERT

BAfARHEZEEER

REEHENEEN
Re RRITEF

Notes
Bt &

15

35

18(f)
32

30

36

—HFERNA=ZTRIEFE

2015 2014
—E-HF T — g
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
FTERT TAT
(Restated)

(&=571)

385 57
(1.589) (4,007)
- 42
(9.391) 1,183
216 -

29 64
(19.544) -
(325) (11.,818)
(30.219) (14,479)
(2,369) (63)
- (1.025)
49,851 —
2,709 10,000
81,700 -
131,891 8,912
(22,721) 19,863
98,939 80,376
782 (1,300)
77,000 98,939
63,741 88,293
13,259 10,646
77,000 98,939
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M AR
B AR R
S 30June 2015 —Z—HFEA=1H
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—WFE
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt X THExT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries N SNEENCIDNESS7 St 90 AV
and a structured entity NAIZIEE 18 1 25,360
Available-for-sales investment ARHERE 20 38,698 -
Total non-current assets EMENEELTE 38,699 25,360
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries and a JE U BfY /B8 2 B M B IR AE R A ST
structured entity RNEIFIA 18 74,118 126,077
Prepayments, deposits and FERNRIE  EHe Rk
other receivables H fth JE WK 8 23 607 379
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEIEHR 26 40,990 40,620
115,715 167,076
Non current assets held for sale BHEZERBDEE 18(a) 61,262 -
Total current assets MENVEEMBEE 176,977 167,076
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to a subsidiary FE A H /B 1 7] 18 10,513 10,040
Other payables and accruals HtEMNRIBERETBE 6,904 41,688
Note payables R ER 30 81,700 -
Total current liabilities BB ERE 99.117 51,728
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 77.860 115,348
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBERSE
LIABILITIES 116,559 140,708
Net assets EERE 116,559 140,708
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEITRA 32 56,040 50,945
Reserves G 34(b) 60,519 89,763
Total equity A 116,559 140,708
HUANG Shaokang CHOW Siu Kwong
BB A¥k*x
Director Director
EFE 1
DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d
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Notes to Consolidated Financial S’ro’remen’ré\ﬁ—"
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Year ended 30 June 2015 & =%

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DX.com Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
"GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

The registered office of the Company was located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Unit 01, 3/F, Hing Yip Commercial Centre,
272-284 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at an exfraordinary
general meeting held subsequent fo the end of the
reporting period on 6 August 2015, the domicile of
the Company has been changed from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda by way of de-registration in the
Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda. The re-domicile
was completed on 21 August 2015. The registered
office of the Company has been changed to
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamitlon HMT1T,
Bermuda.

The change of domicile has no impact on the
continuity and the listing status of the Company.

At beginning of the year, the Group’s was principally
engaged in (i) e-commerce and provision
of online sales platform; and (ii) provision of
professional information technology ('IT") contract
and maintenance services. During the year, the
Group disposed of its professional IT confract and
maintenance services business which was completed
subsequent to the end of reporting period on 31
August 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public
Accountants (*HKICPA"), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of
the Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sales investments and
derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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2.1

DX.com Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and a structured entity (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 30
June 2015. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
and a sfructured entity are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries and a
structured entity are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if it results in the non-conftrolling
interests having a deficit balances. All intfra-group
assefs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to fransactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary and a structured entity, without a loss
of conftrol, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group losses confrol over a subsidiary or
a structured entity, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
or a structured entity, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
franslation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in ofher comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs which are applicable to the Group, for the
first fime for the current year’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements 2012-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits - Defined Benefit Plan:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financiall
Instruments: Presentation -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financiall
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition!

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business
Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

' Effective from 1 July 2014

Other than as further explained below, the adopfion of these new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

0) Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of
an investment entity and provide an exception
fo the consolidation requirement for enftities
that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Company does
not qualify as an investment entity as defined

in HKFRS 10.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

2.3

@i

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right
fo set off” for offseftting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also
clarify the application of the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangement.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective in the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments fo HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments fo HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and

Disclosure Initiative!

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
Between an Investor and ifs
Associate or Joint Venture'

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidated Exception'

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Join Operations'
Regulatory Deferral Accounts!

Revenue with Contracts from
Customers?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation!

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

HKAS 41

Amendment to HKAS 27 (2011)

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statement’

Annual improvements 2012-2014 Amendments to a number

Cycle

of HKFRSs!
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Notes to Consolidated Financial S’ro’remen’ré\ﬁ—"
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2018

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622 will aoffect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 30 June 2016. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these changes.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely
tfo have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and structured entities

A subsidiary and structured entity is an enfity, directly
or indirectly, confrolled by the Company, Conftrol is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the confractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(©) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting

rights.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and structured entities
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries and a structured entity are
included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries and a structured entity
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investment in associates

An associafe is an entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associatfes is
included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associates, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in associates are freated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

When an investment in an associate is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling inferests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s idenfifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contfractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Confingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If
the confingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Confingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
seftlement is accounted for within equity.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-confrolling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assetfs of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tfested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment fest of goodwill as
at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing fthe
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(groups of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operatfion when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures ifs equity investments atf fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes info account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it fo another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation fechniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant o
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’'s or
cash generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assefs or groups of assets, in which case,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
tfo the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used fo determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not fo an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited fo the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

®)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

®

(i

(i)

has conftrol or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

®

@D

(i)

(iv)

)

vi

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary or the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is confrolled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset fo its
working condition and location for its infended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put info operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
tfo the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required fo
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
fo write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment fo its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/,%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally trough a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condifion subject only
fo terms that are usual and customary for the sale of
such assetfs or disposal groups and ifs sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as disposal group are reclassified as held for
sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on inifial recognition at cost. The cost of infangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of infangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intfangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash generatfing unit level. Such infangible assets
are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its infention to complete and
its ability fo use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which dose not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortfised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products commencing from the date when
the products are put info commercial production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged fo the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assetfs, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except for the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the frade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and otfther financial assefs
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for frading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for tfrading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as finance income or and negative net changes in fair
value presented as finance costs in the consolidated
statement profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policy set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 and satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contfracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assefts
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
info account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an infegral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has
the positive intention and ability to hold them
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
infto account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance
costs.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and otfther financial assefs
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured aft fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in other income, or unfil the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in other expenses. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
infention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to frade these
financial assefs due fo inactive markets, the Group
may elect tfo reclassify these financial assets. It
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assefts
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights fo receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the assetf, but has
fransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entfered into pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset, When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantfially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor fransferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the fransferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
the case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that has occurred after the inifial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assefs that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial assef, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or contfinues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used fo discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables fogether with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited fo finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. "Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below ifs original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and fthe current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss - is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instfruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset
and is accrued using the rate of inferest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include tfrade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowing and note payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss and designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 and satisfied.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee confracts issued by the Group
are those confracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instfrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is freated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention fo settle on a net basis, or fo realise the
assetfs and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent
measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency confracts. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged
item affects profit or loss.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent
measurement (Continued)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are
classified as:

- fair value hedges when hedging the exposure
to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment; or

- cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure
fo variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated
with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction, or a
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment; or

- hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship fo which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting, the risk management objective
and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging
insfrument, the hedged item or fransaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group
will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness of
changes in the hedging instrument’'s fair value in
offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable fo the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis
to determine that they actually have been highly
effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they were designated.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as
effective hedging instruments are classified as current
or non-current or separated info current and non-
current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted
cash flows):

- Where the Group expects to hold a derivative
as an economic hedge (and does not apply
hedge accounting) for a period beyond 12
months affer the end of the reporting period,
the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current
portions) consistently with the classification of
the underlying item.

- Embedded derivatives that are not closely
related to the host contract are classified
consistently with the cash flows of the host
contract.

- Derivative instruments that are designated as,
and are effective hedging instruments, are
classified consistently with the classification
of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated info current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable
allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less estimated costs to be incurred fo completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposifts, and short tferm
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
info known amounts of cash, are subject fo an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s
cash management.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received
in advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred
revenue is released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the corresponding services are
rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to seftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and refurns discounted fo their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
tfo be recovered from or paid tfo the ftaxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
inferpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the tfransaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the femporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tfax credits and any unused fax losses, Deferred
tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused fax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised fo the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the femporary
differences can be ufilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all afttaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is infended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value
of the non-monetfary assets and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal
annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is defermined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities”
above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which
is the difference between the initial carrying value of
the loans and the proceeds received, is treated as a
government grant and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognifion

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(@)

®)

©

()

©)

®

@

DX.com Holdings Limited

from rendering of professional IT contract
services, on the percentage of completfion
basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for "Contract for services” below;

provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the maintenance period;

from re-selling of hardware and software, when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement fo the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

frading of goods via e-commerce, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

provision of online sales platform, when the
services are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument fo the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Conftract for services

Conftfract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments arising from professional IT
contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise
equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the proportion of work completed
fo date to the estimated total work of the relevant
contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is freated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount
due tfo contract customers.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up fo the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the fime of
leave.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Conftributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
tfo the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer confributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed intfo the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a cenfral pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to confribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The confributions
are charged fo the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the cenfral pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
parficipants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the year in which the performance and/or service
condifions are fulfilled in employee benefit expenses.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-seftled
fransactions at the end of the reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for a year represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-seftled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are safisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the ferms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the conftrol
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Dividend

Final dividend proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling af the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on seftlement or tfranslation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initfial
fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are franslated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured aft fair value is freated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and franslated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outfcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes

Significant judgements on the future tax freatment
of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are recorded accordingly. The tax treatment of such
fransactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Classification as disposal group held-for-
sale

As detailed in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the EPRO BVI Group has been classified
as held-for-sale as at 30 June 2015 despite the
disposal was completed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period on 31 August 2015 (2014: The
E-Perfect Group was classified as held-for-sale as at
30 June 2014 despite the disposal was completed
subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 31
July 2014). In making of this judgment, the directors
have considered the conditions set outf in Appendix
B to HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” with satisfactory conclusion.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Provision for impairment of frade receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of trade
receivables of the Group is based on the assessment
of collectability, aging analysis and on management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group are
deteriorated, resulting in an impairment of their ability
fo make payments, addifional allowances may be
required.

Provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and
makes impairment for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sales. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventfory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow moving items.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused fax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
fiming and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovation. Management will change the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different from the
previously estimated lives. It will also write-off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Contingent liabilities in respect of litigation
and claim

The management of the Group has been engaged
in a litigation and claim during the year. Contingent
liabilities arising from this litigation and claim has
been assessed by management with reference to
legal advices. Provisions on the possible obligation, if
appropriate, is made based on management’s best
estimates and judgements.

Impairment of goodwill

The management of the Group determines whether
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. During the year ended 30
June 2015, no impairment of goodwill was provided
(2014: the Group provided an impairment of goodwill
of HK$3,805,000). Further details are stated in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets (other
than goodwiill)

The management of the Group assesses whether there
are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life infangible assets are test for impairment annually
and at other fimes when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales fransactions in an arm’s length
fransaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been assessed
for impairment based on the financial statements
available for those investments. This assessment
requires the Group to make estimates about expected
future performance of the investments and hence
they are subject to uncertainty. The unlisted equity
investments have been fully impaired in the previous
year. Further details are included in note 20 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries and a structured entity

The policy for the provision for impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries and a structured entity are
based on the evaluation of recoverables of accounts
and on the management’s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of the amount.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for impairment of interests in
subsidiaries and a structured entity

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
and a structured entity are required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the fotal comprehensive income of the
subsidiaries and a sfructured entity in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group was principally engaged in e-commerce
and provision of online sales platform, and provision
of professional IT contract and maintenance services.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
info business units based on their nature and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) e-commerce and provision of online sales
platform; and
(b) provision of professional IT contract and

maintenance services, which has been

disposed during the year.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment (loss)/
profit, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax
from confinuing operatfions. The adjusted loss before
tfax is measured consistently with the Group’s loss
before tax from continuing operations except that
interest income, finance costs, as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sales investment
and unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowing, note payables and unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

3.
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

TS
DAMAN

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2015

Segment revenue
Segment results

Unallocated other income
and gains
Unallocated expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Share of losses of an
associate

Loss before tax
Income ftax expense

Loss for the year
Segment assets
Interest in associate
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation
and amortisation
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REsIER )

BE-Z-AFAAZTHLEE

Continuing
operation
FHEEEXEE

Discontinued
operation
wIEREER

E-commerce
and provision
of online
sales platform
segment
BEFEHER
RAHALE
HEFAEDHE
HK$" 000
FHT

749,660

(34.208)

167,488

93,425

141

2,202

Professional
IT contract and
maintenance

services
segment Total
HEEA
BEEHORES
RER®E D st
HK$" 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FET
150,756 900,416
(29.838) (64,046)
139
(22,170)
(86.,077)
(2.369)
(88.446)
1,534
(86,912)
102,761 270,249
80,350
350,599
41,499 134,924
99.116
234,040
1,448 1.589
48,940
50,529
1,044 3,246
3,246



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2014

Segment revenue

Segment results

Unallocated other income

and gains

Unallocated expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Share of losses of

associates

Loss before tax

Income ftax expense

Loss for the year

Segment assets

Interest in associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation
and amortisation
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CARBRENT

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

BE

Continuing
operation
FEEEERR

KesHER

Discontinued
operation
HIEREER

E-commerce
and provision
of online
sales platform
segment
EFEBR
RHALE
SHEFE D
HKS$" 000
FHET
(re-stated)
(&%)

1,166,050

(21.846)

154,220

105,088

2,629

1,815

Professional
IT contract and
maintenance

—E-MFERA=THIEFE

services
segment Total
HEEM
MEEHARES
RERB DB et
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
TET THET
(re-stated) (re-stated)
(B&5) (FB&E351)
158,291 1,324,341
(26.,035) (47.881)
(15,112)
(62,993)
(63)
a2
(63.068)
(7.608)
(70,676)
151,018 305,238
420
41,345
347,003
36,915 142,003
52,181
194,184
1,378 4,007
4,007
1,352 3,167
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“S Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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=W Yearended 30 June 2015 BE-_FT—RAFNA=ZTAHLEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,
(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

The revenue information is based on the
location of the customers.

REsIER )

& &R

(@

BEIESZ A
THRAE BRI R R 5 8 -

Group
E
Year ended 30 June 2015 “E-HFXNAZ=ZTHEE
North South Consoli-
America  America* Africa Europe* Asia  Oceania dated
LEN BEN %M B ] FEM aff
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
TEn TER TEn Thn TAn TEL AR
Segment revenue: AHYUA
Continuing operation: REEEEE:
E-commerce and provision BFEHREH
of online sales platform ALEETa 82,686 147,274 5603 419,317 65,375 29,405 749,660
Discontinued operation: BIEER%%:
Professional IT EZEMMR
confract and maintenance  AH1%
services EERE - - - - 150,756 - 150,756
82,686 147,274 5,603 419,317 216,131 29,405 900,416
Year ended 30 June 2014 ZZE-NFEANAZTHEE
North South Consoli-
America  America* Africa Europe* Asia Oceania dafed
EEM BEM El Bl 3l AHM At
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
TERL TR THRL TEn TR TEn TERL
Segment revenue: AHUA
Continuing operation: RERERE:
E-commerce and provision EFEBREH
of online sales platform BIHETR 146,370 304,129 5,064 574,900 92,682 42905 1,166,050
Discontinued operation: RIEEEEE
Professional IT ERXEAMBE
contract and maintenance 28R
services #ERB - - - - 158,291 - 158,291
146,370 304,129 5,064 574,900 250,973 42905 1,324,341
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

(a) Revenue from external customers
(Continued)

* Include an amount of approximately
HK$107,816,000 (2014: HK$251,849,000) sales
to Brazil which accounted for more than 10%
of total revenue for the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014.

# Include an amount of approximately
HK$81,430,000 sales to Spain which accounted
for 9% of total revenue for the year ended
30 June 2015 (2014: HK$137,366,000, which
accounted for more than 10% of total
revenue).

(b) Segment assefs
Year ended 30 June 2015

CARBRENT

KesHER

wEER ()
(a) RESNEESZUA (&)

* BRERAEBAEZHEELY
107,816,000/ L (= Z —
& : 251,849,000 7T) » HAih
BE-Z—AFR=-ZT—NF
NA=ZtTBELEFEEZRALBE
#10% °

‘ BREAANT ZHEED
81,430,000/ 7T » HIEEZE =
E-RAFRA=ZTHLEFEZ
WA B EE89% (=T — 4 ¢
H I 4 58 73137,366,000/8
T B A BERI0%) -

(b)) HEHEE
—E-EEXAS+AEE

Group
150
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia  Oceania dated
EEMN BEM M BN ] KEM Al
HK$"000 HKS"000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000 HK$"000 HKS" 000 HKS* 000
AR TER AR TERL TER TERL TEL
Segment assets PHEE - - - - 350,599 - 350,599
Capital expenditure EXEY - - - - 50,529 - 50,529
Year ended 30 June 2014 ZE-NFEANA=ZTHEE
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia Oceania dated
EEM BEM M B Tl REM Al
HK$' 000 HKS* 000 HKS"000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TEn AR TERL TER TERL TEn TER
Segment assefs PHEE - - - - 347,003 - 347,003
Capital expenditure ERRR - - - - 4,007 - 4,007
Information about a major customer EBEREREFZER

An independent major customer arising from
discontinued operation accounted for approximately
13% (2014: 8%) of the total revenue during the year
ended 30 June 2015.

W=B—HFAA=THILFE  A%EH
2BIUEBEF GG R HEEGS
HEL13% (=T~ 1 8%) -
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’'s furnover,
represents the net invoiced value of provision of
professional IT contract and maintenance services
and the transaction price arising from e-commerce
and provision of online sales platform.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

gains is as follows:

Revenue:
Continuing operation:

E-commerce and provision of

online sales platform
Discontinued operation:
Provision of professional
IT contract and
maintenance services

Other income and gains:
Interest income .
Compensation received

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain on derivative

financial instruments (note 25)

Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (note 35)

Gain on disposal of equity
investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Government grants received

Write back of tfrade payables

PRC tax refunded
Reversal of impairment of

tfrade receivables (note 22)

Reversal of long service
payment provision

Rental income

Others

Total revenue, other income
and gains

Revenue:

Attributable to continuing
operation reported in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss

Attributable to discontinued
operation (note 12)

Other income and gains:

Attributable to contfinuing
operation reported in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss

Attributable to discontinued
operation (note 12)
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WA~ Hib AR WS

WA (TR AREE 2 2R BIREEE
AR EANRGERERE ZHRFE
LREFRABIERBLEETFa 2R SE

(=

REBZBA - BB ARKESHTOT

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—ZE-HEF —E—F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAT
749,660 1,166,050
150,756 158,291
900,416 1,324,341
385 57
390 -
29 64
- 371
- 512
164 486
308 429
1.303 233
143 -
953 -
- 173
458 -
766 -
134 240
5,033 2,565
905,449 1,326,906
749,660 1,166,050
150,756 158,291
900,416 1,324,341
4,023 707
1,010 1,858
5,033 2,565
905,449 1,326,906




LOSS BEFORE TAX

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R BRI

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

6.

The Group’'s loss before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of sales and services*
Continuing operation
Disconfinued operation

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Minimum lease paymenfs under
operating leases in respect of
land and building

Write off of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of an associate (note 19)

Auditors’ remuneration

Impairment of goodwill (note 16)
Impairment of other

infangible assets (note 17)
Impairment of assets of

a disposal group classified as

held for sale (note 36)

Impairment of available-for-sales
investment (note 20)

Provision for lifigation

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration in note 8):
Wages and salaries
Net pension scheme

contributions*

Interest income

Compensation received

Reversal of impairment of
tfrade receivables (note 22)

Dividend income from equity
investments af fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments (note 25)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 35)

Gain on disposal of equity
investments af fair value
through profit or loss

Government grants received

PRC tax refunded

Reversal of long service
payment provision

Write back of trade payables
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BRBEATES 18
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P B HEFTE
Group
S -3]
2015 2014
—E-E% “T-ME
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT TAT
435,802 678,639
121,325 119,862
557,127 798,501
3,246 3,167
8,558 8,864
61 =
- 123
204 =
840 910
- 3,805
- 5,979
36,394 18,305
36,394 28,089
10,242 =
8,929 46,878
37,285 50,096
4,384 5,843
41,669 55,939
(385) (57)
(390) =
- (173)
(29) (64)
- (371)
- (512)
(164) (486)
(308) (429)
(1.303) (233)
(953) =
(458) =
(143) =
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

6.

DX.com Holdings Limited

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 6.
* At 30 June 2015, the Group did not have forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to
the pension scheme in future years (2014: Nil).
J The technical expenses for the year of approximately
HK$108,672,000 (2014: HK$113,511,000) are included
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
FINANCE COSTS 7.
Interest expenses on bank loans RITERF BMAX
Interest expenses on other loans HiERF B
Interest expenses on note payables &2 F| 2B 5z (Kf5£30)
(note 30)
Finance costs: BEKA
Attributable to continuing BAEBRRMEWNEE
operation reported in the TSRS
consolidated statement of
profit or loss
Attributable to discontinued BRI ETE S
operation (note 12) (M5E12)
DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’

remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622 with reference to Section 161 of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
32 is as follows:

Fees we
Other emoluments: Hibii2
Salaries, allowances and AR  EMEM R
benefits in kind EY =
- Executive directors —HITES
- Non-executive director —ERTES
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIHER

| DX.comiZRER A A

%ﬁm%ﬁ@)

RZZE—RAEFNA=Z1THAXEEIL R

BHRORYUR
FE)

KREFEZHEKX(ZF—N

* RARFEE 2 #1iT E B4 /108,672,000

BT (ZZE -4
EEEERaER
ADA e

& R AR

113,511,000/ 7T)
sx 2z ([HamHER

Group

rEH
2015 2014
—E-AEF = — U5
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THET
1,136 63
869 -
364 -
2,369 63
1,528 19
841 44
2,369 63
@f%x%ﬂ%ﬁ E5 FmARAIREER

GG (2622F) T R1TET781K R 2R Al
E\i’é’a AMEDIEI2EE161IEBETHE 2
REEESMEOT :

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—ZE—EF —T—UF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FERT FHET
244 242
3,925 6,947
227 -
37 52
4,189 6,999
4,433 7,241
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continvedy 8. EZEME (&)

(a) Executive directors

(®)

2015

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LUO Jia

2014

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. MENG Hu

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LUO Jia

Note:

—ET-1%F
BEORRAE
BkriE
EEiLAE

“E-mE
BELREL
AREE
Rk EE
BEAE

(a) resigned on 25 July 2014

Non-executive directors

Mr. GAO Xiang
Mr. MENG Hu
Mr. Jin Ge

BALE
Eiobis
eXELE

() BITESE
Group
r5EE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e
HAt 2, BiRg
ue REWFZ IR “ame
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
B 5E FAT FiET TET TAT
- 728 18 746
- 3,158 18 3,176
(a) - 39 1 40
- 3,925 37 3,962
- 728 7 788
- 1,980 15 1,995
- 3,658 15 3,673
(a) - 581 15 596
- 6,947 52 6,999
B & -
(a) R-ZE—NFELA=-THB#
£
(b) FHITEE
Group
AEME
2015 2014
—ZE-AF —E—{mF
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
B 5 FHET FHET
(@) = -
(b) 227 -
© = =
227 -




8. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued)

—AFANA=TALEFEE

(b) Non-executive directors (Continued)

Noftes:

(a) resigned on 16 January 2014

(b) re-designated as "Non-executive director” from
“Executive director” on 18 May 2015

(©) appointed on 25 July 2014 and resigned 18

a6

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

May 2015.

(¢) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid fo independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

LU Wei BlELE

FONG Fuk Wai HRELE
LI Guanbao FTEHREE
ZHU Zhi KEKE

LIN Xicofeng IR & 5t
LAM Kit Sun MEERT &
HUNG Kenneth HERLE

Noftes:

(@) resigned on 1 August 2013

(b) resigned on 18 May 2015

©) appointed on 1 August 2013

(d) appointed on 1 August 2013 and resigned on
15 January 2015

(e) appointed on 15 January 2015

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2014: Nil).

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7
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(@

®)
©
©
C)
©
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Year ended 30 June 2015 H ===

EEME

(b) FHTEED

B 5

(a) KT E— A+ BET

(b) RZT—RAFRA+ N \BAEH
TEFREZINTES

(©) R_ZE—NE+A-+HEAZ
FERR=_ZT—RAERAA+NA
BHT -

(c) BUKBTES
B TESCAFEMNS AT
Group
AEME

2015 2014
—ZE-AfF RS
HK$' 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FET

- 4
50 50
44 50
50 46
50 46
27 46
23 -
244 242

FEE

(@
®)
©
@

©

RZZE—=F\A—BHME
RZZE—RAFHEA+N\BEE
R-E—=F/\A—REZE

RZZFE-—=FNA-REZAF
YHR=F-—AF—-A+HAR
£
RZZF-—HFE—-A+HTRAEZR
f£

F I AT A E At B A B S 3F
—PEE ) o

TEFZHE (=F
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R BRI

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued)

No further emoluments were paid by the Group to
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or fo join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year, there were no share options
granted to the directors in respect of their services
to the Group. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included 2 (2014: 3) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining 3 (2014: 2) non-
director, highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHER

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

8.

Fe H2MREWN R

BEEME )

AEBEBEARENTES  FATES
RBUFERTEENEMEMEME - A
PR E DA SRR I AR 52 B R 2 2R B o 1
FRBER 2 B 1E

FR-BEAEFARERFBRAKEM
BT BAE - BB E TR R E T

T e

EEBREHFET
FALEAERHEERE2E (ZF—N
F:3R)EE WEZMESHBENEX
MisE8 - FREBRT3E (ZT—WF : 28)
FEEBRSHFHEEZHESFBENOT

Group

M
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-mE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T
2,620 3,230
156 30
2,776 3,260

HeNFTiBERNzZ&SHEEERE
ZHBEHERNTIX

Number of employees

EEAH
2015 2014
—E-R%F —F-mE
Nil fo HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 1T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1.000,0017% 7T %2,000,000% 7T 1
3 2

ANNUAL REPORT
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —AENA=-+HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year ended 30 June 2015.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Taxes on profits in respect of Group companies
operating elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the respective tax countries/
jurisdictions in which they operate based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Group: RER :

Current tax - Hong Kong BUEAR 5 — &/ B
Charge for the year REFRX
Over-provision in previous year WIETFEBERE

Current tax - Elsewhere BIEATL 7% — HAth b [&
Charge for the year REERX

Deferred tax (note 31) EAET R (FFREST)

Total tax charged for the year FARIEX HAEHE

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7
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10. FREHEH

R-Z—REAAS+EAEERAES
B (iR BRI 8 1T R 23
BB M -

R-ZE—MEXA=THEEFEH IR
BAFEREBES 2t ERR & T
HEI6.5%(ZE—HF : 165):1E -

AEEREMBREE 2 RAZANBH
HOBREMAEMZREED  RERIE
Pl 1% BRI EDARER 2 RITHEGH -

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—mF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHET
- 6,132
a9 -
428 667
409 6,799




10.

11.

12.

\

P
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Notes to Consolidated Financial S’ro’remen’rs“ﬁ-—r”

Year ended 30 June 2015 & =%

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
loss before tax from continuing operation using the
statutory rate for the countries in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expenses
at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax from BELEER
continuing operation BRIAI B R
Tax calculated at Hong Kong REBHEITENHIE

fax rates
Effect of different taxation
rate in overseas

BIREREY T E

Income not subject to tax EHHBA

Expenses not deductible for tax KR53

Unrecognised deferred AEREEHBEEE
tax assefs

Over-provision in previous year BEFEBERE

Other Hit

Tax charge at effective tax rate REBRHE

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s netf loss from ordinary activities
attributable to owners of the Company for the year
includes a loss of HK$49,014,000 (2014: HK$35,424,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 34(b)).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group disposed of its professional IT contract
and maintenance services business during the year
ended 30 June 2015. On 21 April 2015, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
"Agreement”) with China Mobile Games And Cultural
Investment Limited, an independent third party.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company disposed
of (the "EPRO BVI Disposal”) its 100% equity interest
in EPRO (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries (except for
EPRO Systems Limited) (the "EPRO BVI Group”) at a
consideration of HK$40,000,000, subject to upward
adjustments with a maximum consideration of
HK$120,000,000.

The EPRO BVI Disposal was completed subsequent fo
the end of the reporting period on 31 August 2015.

H
l%l_ﬁ/\

B 75 ¥R AR Y

—HFERNA=ZTRIEFE

10. FTIEHER @)
AREBEFELCERBABENUERR
HEWBRARMEMBERZEERE ﬁﬁz
FHERAYHFRERBEETEE 2 HERD
T~
Group
r5E
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-\F
HK$’' 000 % HKS' 000 %
TERT TEL
(57,767) (36,989)

(9.532) 16.5 (6.103) 16.5
1)) 0.3 188 (0.5)
(194) 0.3 (2.323) 6.3

1,217 2.1) 10,535 (28.5)
9,108 (15.8) 4,306 (11.6)
(19) 0.1 - i
- - 195 (0.5)
409 0.7) 6,798 (18.3)
ADFEEARERESR
B ZEBEFRE
REAEXRBZHBREPEEZHEEA
JEAG B % 275 2 518 5 58 549,014,000/
T (ZZ — P4 : 35,424,000 7T) (K5
34(b)) °
12. ,%% ik ,«%«; ERK
R-B—RAEXNA=1+TBLEE A&£H

u”j.:.,\ii?%%?ﬂﬂ&é\%ﬂ&%&ﬂ%%%ﬂ&
BEB R-ZE—RAFWNA-+—BAXRQ
ETE@?%I%_EEF'i" YM&%T%KE
ARG —EBE Wz ((&hzl)

R - A A A & REPRO (BVI)
Limited X EZ B AR (BT 58 R
“ Al ([EPRO BVIEH]) Z]OO%HX$
5 ([ SEPRO BVIEIHE]) - 2R B
40,000,0005%73(ﬂ%i?ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ{gi%
120,000,000/ 7T) °

#H BEPRO BVIT M A 3 45
T-HE\A=—ARMK

Rig=
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DX.com Holdings Limited |

discontinued operation

DX.comiZ R B IR 1 7]

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (confinuedy 12, #RILE& ¥ 78 )
The results of the discontinued operation included FPIARFERAMKIEEEEBEERT
in the profit for the year are set out below. The T o R IPEE BN RETRBANE
comparative loss and cash flows from discontinued BNESRECEEY Uit N AFED
operation have been re-presented to include the BRBRIMEENET
operation classified as disconfinued operation in the
current year:
2015 2014
—E-AHEF —
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
5 FTET FHBT
Revenue ' ON 5 150,756 158,291
Cost of sales EmiEERAR 6 (121,325) (119,862)
Gross profit E A 29,431 38,429
Other income and gains H g A R = 5 1,010 1,858
Selling and distribution costs 8% & 5 55 4 (194) (340)
Administrative expenses THER (23.691) (37.,893)
Impairment of goodwill AR E - (3.805)
Impairment of other HifER & ERE
infangible assets - (6.979)
Finance costs A& A 7 (841) (44)
Profit/ (loss) before tax BRI &EF S (EE) 5,715 (7.774)
Income tax credit/(expense) PSR EE (&) 1,943 (809)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from # IHEEEHHARFE
discontinued operation am/ (F5E) 7.658 (8.583)
Impairment of assets of a }Hﬁ’%zﬁlﬁa*ﬁ?—rf’ﬁ 36
disposal group classified EMEERE
as held for sale (36,394) (18,305)
(28,736) (26,888)
Profit/ (loss) attributable to: LX"FIE HEGAET, (F8)
Owners of the Company NEEAR A (28.827) (27.122)
Non-controlling interests #T i 18 &= 91 234
(28,736) (26,888)
The net cash flow incurred EPRO BVI£ & f7 & 4 &Y
by the EPRO BVI Group WEMFENAT:
are as follows:
Operating activities KR (3.616) 12,778
Investing activities &,\/E@J (1.405) 343
Financing activities BE R 6,641 (6.591)
Net cash inflow BeMAFRE 1,620 6,530
Loss per share: FRER :
Basic, from the ER(RERILEEEE)
discontinued operation (0.52) cents#{li (0.53) centsi#
Diluted, from the e (RE R IR L)

(0.52) centsi&{ll  (0.53) centsi& il




13.

14.

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year aftributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The calculations of basic loss per share are based on:

13.

14.

Loss attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company,

used in the basic loss per
share calculations

Atftributable to:
Continuing operation
Discontfinued operation

Shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic

REETEBRER
EENEBERART
A s R R B A
&5 18

AT BRI
FELEER
RIEEEBER

Bt
RN R
BEZER

BT HRB R T

loss per share calculation™

* The shares issued under the open offer (note 32)
which were completed during the year ended 30 June
2015 were not included in the calculation of the loss
per share as the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the effect of such is not material to the
loss per share amount for the year ended 30 June
2014.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 30 June 2015 and
2014.

R 2
EEETERREHBHE_T-—HFRA
=tHIEEARE(ZE—MEF &) -
ADTEBERERZEEA
Rl > B RER

BEREABREBNRZFEARAER
BEESBEABGZFEBRE  UWRFA
ERITEBRZNEFHEH -

FRERBEZATEEFE

2015 2014
—ZE—EHF T —mF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
(87.003) (70,910)
(58.176) (43,788)
(28,827) (27.122)
(87.003) (70,910)
Numbers of shares
BHEB

2015 2014
—E—EHF —T—UF

5,694,196,823  5,094,515,570

* RZZE-—RAFA=+HILFEAR &
EERBREBRIBEE K AREEH
TR (EE32) X ¥ BN EBIEEN
REARARFEFRAEBTEHEE
CE-MERAZTHLFEZESRE
BEEMsLTEKX -

AEBERBEE-_T—AFR-_T—HFEN
A=+ HLFEYEABEHEYEZE
TEB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R
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e
DAMAN AL g &
e B ERRMEE
= Yearended 30 June 2015 HE=-ZT—RAF A=t HILFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BERRHE
Group
b3 |
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
i ElRE
HERE  EERRG RE# RE At
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000
TEn TERL TETL THT ThL
30 June 2015 “E-REXAZTA
At 1 July 2014: “E-mELA-B:
Cost AE 5,953 4,484 12,958 686 24,081
Accumulated depreciation ZEHFTERAE
and impaiment (2,763) (3.374) (9.997) @256 (16,39)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,190 1,110 2,961 430 7,691
At 1 July 2014, net of “E-mELA-A-
accumulated depreciation BHREHTERAE
and impairment 3,190 1,110 2,961 430 7,691
Additions NE 779 103 707 - 1,589
Reallocate fo assets and ENAERABLELEBRE
liabilities of a disposal group BREENEEERAR
clossified as held for sale (Fi3E36(a))
(nofe 36(a)) (1,234) (422) (1,526) - (3.182)
Depreciation provided ERFERE
during the year (1,494) (435) (1.179) (138) (3.246)
Write off s - (2 (59) - (61)
Exchanges realignment ERHRE 9 2 7 1 19
At 30 June 2015, net of “E-REAAZTAE
accumulated depreciation BHNREHTERAE
and impairment 1,250 356 91 293 2,810
At 30 June 2015: “E-RERAZTA:
Cost RAE 3,575 2,012 2,561 686 8,834
Accumulated depreciation ZEERAE
and impairment (23%5)  (165%) (1,650 @93) (6024
Net carrying amount BEFE 1,250 356 9 293 2,810
102 DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRAER 1 Al



15.

PROPERTY,
(Continued)

30 June 2014
At T July 2013:

Cost
Accumulated depreciafion
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 July 2013, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Reallocate to assets and
liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale
(note 36(b))

Depreciation provided
during the year

Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 35(b))

Disposals

Exchanges realignment

At 30 June 2014, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 30 June 2014

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R BRI

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

“F-mEAAZTA
“3-IFLA-E
AkE

BB R
EERE

“E-CEER-B
EARZHHERAE

7z
EHiAEALLE SEEE
BREEAERER
(36(0))

ERAERE

HERBAE
(Fr35(0))

&

EXRE

ZE-WERAZTH:
BNREZHAERAE

ZE-MERAZTR:
RAE
ZHAERAE

FEEFE

15. W% BERRE =)

Group
15E
Fumniture, Computer
leasehold ~ fixturesand  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment  and software vehicles Total
B BHEE

BEXE  RERER ket e el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TAL TAL
5114 5116 13,509 695 24,434
(1,915) (3,752) (10,530) (120) (16,317)
3199 1,364 2979 575 8,117
3199 1,364 2979 575 8,117
1,693 497 1,817 - 4,007
(381) (165) (191) - (737)
(1,306) (525) (1.197) (139) (3,167)

- (m (46) - (57)

- (45) (384) - (429)

(15) ©) (n © #)
3,190 1,110 2,961 430 7.691
5,953 4,484 12,958 686 24,081
(2,763) (3.374) (9.997) (256) (16,390)
3,190 1110 2,961 430 7.691

B
ANNUAL REPOI
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16. GOODWILL

Cost af 1 July 2013, net of
accumulated impairment

Impairment during the year
(note 6)

Reallocate to assets and
liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale
(note 36(b))

Cost at 30 June 2014, net of
accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2014
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 July 2014, net of
accumulated impairment

Impairment during the year
(note 6)

Cost at 30 June 2015, net
of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2015
Cost

Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

16. B&

RZE—=FEtHA—AKE"
EHERRARE
RAFERE (BF6)

BEHOBEABLEZEERE
REFEGENEERAE (HF36(0))

RZE-—OFRA=ZTHZRA
EkR REHRIE

RZZE—MNFERA=+H
B AR
ZiTRE

REFE

RZZT—MNF+A—HEKA
Bk 25t RE
RAEERE (M 5E6)

R-—Z—HEANA=Z+AZ
AR - BB REHRE
RZTE—RFAA=TH
B AR

ZiTRE

fREFE

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7

Group
rEE
HK$’ 000
FET

15,844

(3.805)

(12,039)

10,436
(10,436)

10,436
(10,436)
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Htt B EE
Group AEHE
Other
Online sales intangible
platforms assets Total
BEXZTE HUBWEE ast
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET TET TER

(note (a)) (note (b))
(GEAC)) (= (b))

30 June 2015 “Z-E§XA=1+H
At 1 July 2014 R-Z-—mELA—B
Cost XA 23,160 - 23,160
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (19.260) - (19,260)
Net carrying value BEFE 3,900 - 3,900
Cost at 1 July 2014, net of RZE-NFLA-AZKAR
accumulated impairment M2 RE 3,900 - 3,900
Impairment during the year RAFERE = - -

Cost at 30 June 2015, net of R-ZE-RFXA=+H

accumulated impairment ZHRAB K REORE 3,900 - 3,900
Af 30 June 2015 RZE-RERXA=TH

Cost B 23,160 - 23,160

Accumulated impairment ZAE (19.260) - (19.260)

Net carrying value REFE 3,900 - 3,900




\w’No’reS to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE =%

—AFERNAZTHLEFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Group
30 June 2014 —mEXA=Z+A
1 July 2013 RZE—=F+A—H
Cost %N
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
Net carrying value REFE
Cost at 1 July 2013, net of “Ft+tA-HZKEE

accumulated impairment
Impairment during the year

sHRE
E%iﬂ@i (MzE6)

(note 6)

Reallocate to assets and

BNNBEARLEZRERER

liobilities of a disposal group BELEEERBE
classified as held for sale (F5E36(b))
(note 36(b))
Cost at 30 June 2014, net of “E-WFERA=TH
accumulated impairment ZHRAB K REORE
At 30 June 2014 RZE-NFAA=TH
Cost R
Accumulated impairment ZETRE
Net carrying value REFE

Notes:

(@

DX.com Holdings Limited

Amount represents two online sales platforms for
frading of merchandises through Internet acquired by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2012.

The Group made a full impairment on the carrying
amount of one of its online sales platforms relevant
to the MIC Platform of subsidiaries amounted to
HK$19,260,000 in previous year.

The recoverable amount of the remaining online
sales platform relevant to business to customers
e-commerce industry has been assessed by Ascent
Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
valuer, as aft 30 June 2015 and 2014. No impairment
of the online sales platform relevant to business to
customers e-commerce industry has been provided as
the recoverable amount of the online sales platform
is higher than its carrying amount as at 30 June 2015
and 2014.

| DX.comiZRER A A

17.

HERLEE 2

=EE
Other
Online sales intangible
platforms assefs Total
WLxHTe  HMEVEE &t
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TEL FEL TEL
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Pt 5E (ar)) (I3 (b))
23,160 27,823 50,983
(19.260) - (19.260)
3,900 27,823 31,723
3,900 27,823 31,723
- (5.979) (5.979)
- (21,844) (21,844)
3,900 - 3,900
23,160 - 23,160
(19,260) - (19.260)
3,900 - 3,900
ML
(a) n= —FRA=THIEFE

1ﬁﬁﬁ/§/g?a$’§ liﬁiﬂuﬁlﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ
RENMEMKEETS -

REE G ERMICT & 2 KB R FH
Hp—EzEMETEENBEFED
YEHH & /& #919,260,0007% 7T i & #
& o

R-E—RAFER=ZZF—NFEXA=1H
¢~M#@ﬁM¢¥ﬁxﬁm@¥ﬁﬁ
MR EETFE KB SEEHE T
EER X F R EH R AR D G - B
—E-RAERZT—WFEANA=1+AH"
HROCEUEFNETRBITEES -
ARELEHETaZAIRESERANE
IREE @ MR E RS -
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Group (Continued)

Notes: (Confinued)

®)

Other intangible assets, which represented (i) certain
computer softwares, (the “Softwares”); and (ii) the
customers relationship (the "Customers Relationship”)
acquired through business combination. The Softwares
are used for the development of tailor-made programs
to its customers and the Customers Relationship
represents certain contractual relationship with its
existing customers at the date of acquisition.

As detailed in the note 36(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Mission Win
International Limited, an independent third party, on
10 June 2014 to dispose of its 100% equity interest
in the E-Perfect Group, which was completed on
31 July 2014. As at 10 June 2014, the recoverable
amount of the Software and Customers Relationship
was assessed by Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited at an amount of HK$21,844,000. Consequently,
an impairment of HK$5,979,000 was provided for
during the year ended 30 June 2014. The recoverable
amount of the Software and Customers Relationship
of HK$21,844,000 was reallocated as ‘assets and
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for
sales” as at 30 June 2014.

17. HbBEREE (2

FEE(F)

M (&)

(®)

Hith BV EEREASBERBKBEY
REMEG 2 (YEURE B e ([
RNEPHE(EPBE] - ELH
HFRBERR —LEHTEEMIRER
R fMEs - RFREREERER
CEEREEPBEROME -

BANER A B R IR R M FE36(b) AT At -
RZZTE—WFEFSA+H AEEHEB
37 % = 7 Mission Win International
Limitedz] :2 — 10 B E % - RIB UL 1
AR E LS T EEE Z100% A
EmkERZE—NWFELA=1+—H
TR ZE—NFEANATH - ZE8H
LEFBGREzZAHKBSEE BB LG
BRI AFEFAERAB T SE
721,844,000 7T« At - MHEREP
HEER-ZZ—NFSA=+AHRE
5,979,000 7T - M R EF B ER 2 7]
Uy 6] & #821,844,0007 L E 1 9 B A
BHEZEEGEARELEZEER
afERn -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A

STRUCTURED ENTITY

Unlisted shares, at cost
Capital contribution in respect
of employee share-based

compensation (note 33)

Impairment

Investments in subsidiaries and
a structured entity

Due from subsidiaries and
a structured entity
Impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries and
a structured entity

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —AENA=-+HILFE

FELTA - AR
BRTEIRMMAEZ
EE (M15E33)

AR

18.

TA Y I 2 B R IR A W R S

RAZIEE

IR W PR BB 2 ) T A Bk A PR AL

NG

e M5 PRS28] e A Bk A AR SL

NEFRRE R

Due from subsidiaries and a structured & U i} /B A &) K2 55 7k &5 S A 52

entity, net of impairment

Due to a subsidiary

AAIFIAC MERRE

JREA<F BT B8 A R RRIR

The balances with subsidiaries and a structured entity
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms

of repayment.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7

Company
AT

2015 2014

—E-RF —F-mE

HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000

F#ExT FHET

1 45,459

- 2,721

1 48,180
- (22,820)

1 25,360

99.104 176,926
(24,986) (50,849)

74,118 126,077
(10,513) (10,040)

B8 2 B R R SR AR L N B A AR R A
B R E BN
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R BRI

Year ended 30 June 2015 BE_Z—RAFNA=THILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A

STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) NSRRI RE #)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEHBARZFHBOT :
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share  capital/registered
establishment and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRTR HARNARKE
BERAE/ ZBRf
gAY/ ERUPES BA/ R
8 EMREEXB 2B ZEE e =R TEEH
Direct  Indirect
=t &
ePRO (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Nil 100 - Investment holdings
(note a) (fitita) RERAHE & REER
EPRO Systems (China) Limited Hong Kong N/A - 100 Investment holdings and
(note a) B TER provision of professional
SEZG (PR BRRA (note g) (Mzg) IT contract and
(M &Ea) maintenance services
REZREREZREAR
BERa O REEBRE
EPRO Systems (HK) Limited Hong Kong N/A - 100 Investment holdings and
(nofe a) BE TER provision of professional
SBERG(BE)ERAR (note g) (Fiztg) IT contract and
(Mi3ta) maintenance services
REZRRRHIZER
RHRA 4 R AR
EPRO Technology Limited Hong Kong N/A - 100 Provision of professional
(note a) BE TER T contract and
HEMBRARAR (note g) (Miztg) maintenance services
(Wta) REFZEARE
AU REERS
Shanghai EPRO Software Company PRC US$200,000 - 100 Provision of professional
Limited ("SH EPRO") (notes a, b, d & f) H 200,000% 7t IT contract and
LESEYNERARN(LESE]) maintenance services
(Mo b dRf) REEXEAMR
AU REERS
EPRO E-commerce Group Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 - Investment holdings
(note d) (FiizEd) RRRUES 100%7T RAERK
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A

STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
Name operations
gL/
=L EMREEXH 2
EPRO E-commerce Limited Hong Kong
ESTHABERAA BB
Jiangsu Weipu Technical Service PRC
Co., Limited (notes a, ¢ & d) i
IHEERMBHERAR (Mita - ckd)
Geekdigg Limited Hong Kong
BEEAREXARAA BE
SEUR)EERNERRA PRC
(notes b & d) (MizTbkd) $
Golden Strategy Inc Limited Hong Kon
EREBBRLA &
Fortune People Limited (note e) Hong Kong
HRBER DA (fizte) Bk
ATHREFHEERAR PRC
(note b & d) (MiHbkd) i

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share
capital/registered
share capital
ERTR
HRBAE/
R A

ZEE

N/A
TEA
(note g) (fifzEg)

HK$6,000,000
6,000,000% 7

N/A
TEA
(note g) (fitztg)

US$100,000
100,000% 7T

N/A
TEA
(note g) (Hiztg)

N/A
TER
(note g) (fitzEg)

RMB500,000
500,000A R #%

18.

RHMEB R T RSB K
MRARZKRE &)

Percentage

of issued
capital/registered
capital held

by the Company
HAARRE
A=Y i)

B /2

e =R

Direct  Indirect
=8 &

- 100

(2012;
100)

Principal activities

TEXE

E-commerce and provision
of online sales platform
ETHBRREBLHETS

Provision of professional

IT contfract and

maintenance services

EHEZEAMEAH

RAERSE

Investment holdings
RERH

E-commerce and
provision of online
sales plafform
EFEKR
REBLIHETS

E-commerce and
provision of online
sales plafform
EFEKR
REBLHETS

E-commerce and
provision of online
sales platform
ETEHKR
RUBLHETS

E-commerce and
provision of online
sales platform
ETEHKR
REBLHEETR
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE—T—RAFENA=-+THILLFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A 18. R B 2 8 & 45 Bk & 8 B
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) MAEZRE @)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share  capital/registered
establishment and  capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BETR EpANGTEEE
HEREK/ PASY: Sy
EMAL/ R A R&/
B EMREERB 2 E ZHEE EXEAM TEXE
Direct Indirect
=8 EE:3
Dragon Champ Investment Limited Hong Kong N/A - 100 E-commerce and
BREREBRAF B TiEA provision of online
(note g) (Hig) sales platform
BFEBR
REPLEETR
Wise Lead Inc Limited Hong Kong N/A - 100 E-commerce and
BRBRAR Hi T A provision of online
(note g) (MiEg) sales platform
BFEBR
REBLHETR
e-Perfect IT Limited (note e) Hong Kong N/A - - Provision of professional
LEMEERAR (Mite) 0 TER (2014: IT contract and
(note g) (HEg) 100) mainfenance services

REZZEAMBRAORELRY

e-Perfect Information Technology PRC RMB500,000 - - Provision of professional
(Shenzhen) Limited (notes b, d & e) i 500,000A K% (2014: IT contract and
EEEEMHE(RINERRR 100) maintenance services
(i~ dlte) RUSEEANBADREBRE
Notes: B 5
(a) These subsidiaries were re-classified as “Assefs and (o) B A RN T — ﬁﬁ/\ﬂ +HE
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for *ﬁ?‘]ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%Z%@ DEEHE
sale” as at 30 June 2015. The disposal of these MEERERE] - ZWEL TEE’??&.:.
subsidiaries were completed subsequent to the end Hr-—ZT-0nFN\A 7+*H%ﬁiﬁ§§
of the reporting period on 31 August 2015, details of HE - FREFAREE M BRRN T
which are set out in note 36(a) to the consolidated 36(a) c R=ZE— ﬂﬁ/\ﬁ = -t ENE
financial statements. For the singleton financial E@ET1%‘JE@E1?%¥&§’EQM¢E”AETZ
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 &ﬁ%’x’%LQéQ,OOO;%TE(?é?EPEfDﬁ%?W
June 2015, the investment cost and amount due from 1B # 1#%101,250,000% 7T ) B E ¥ 5I A
subsidiaries of such subsidiaries of approximately RIBHEZERDEE] -

HK$61,262,000 (net of an accumulated impairment
loss of approximately HK$101,250,000) were re-
classified as “Non-current asset held for sale”.

(b) This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign owned (b) JltFﬁE’RETJHET)?EP Bl A E AN
enterprise under the PRC law. BELE-

©) This subsidiary is registered as a foreign investment ©) U A IR IR R BUR R B R B INETIR
enterprise under the PRC law. Bz

ANNUAL REPORT ;
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18.

DX.com Holdings Limited |

e SRR MR

== Yearended 30 June 2015 BZE =T —HFA=+HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@

©)

®

@

Not audited by Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited.

As detailed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, these subsidiaries were disposed of during
the year.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement
dated 5 December 2013, the Group enfered into an
agreement with a minority shareholder of SH EPRO
to further acquire (the “Acquisition”) 10% equity
intferest in SH EPRO at a consideration of RMB800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,025,000). Upon the
completion of the Acquisition, the equity interests in
SH EPRO held by the Group was increased from 90%
to 100%, the premium on step acquisition of SH EPRO
of approximately HK$150,000 which was recognised in
the capital reserve.

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, which was effective on 3 March 2014, the
concept of authorised share capital no longer exists.
In accordance with Section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, the Hong Kong
company’s shares no longer have a par value with
effect from 3 March 2014.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

DX.comiZ R B IR 1 7]

18. RMIB R B4ISRAE BRI
PRAIZEE #)

M (&)

@

©)

®

()

THBMFREBEHAEBFERLT
SEEEE -

I ER B T SRR M EE35 0 WIS A
AERAFEARNHE -

BOMAARBEHAE-_T—=F+=A
TRZAMMAFL  ARRELEFHE
Z BRI — i - KE— PR
BLE5E 210%8 ([HiEsm]) -
# R E R ARM800,0007T (HHE KK
1,025,0008 7T) ° RUHE BIRZE M IR -
REEMTAELESHE 2 RAEH0%IE
ANZE100% » I 5 A% 7N G 6 7 588 22 UK
i L85 E 2% E#150,000/8 7T °

BRER-_Z-—NF=A=ZBERZEE
NAMEPIFE622% - EERAZEST
BIFEE -REEBRQAIGIE2EF
135k - EARRAROHE T —NF=
A=AETHBAEMIE -

EERA LRAFINARANBAREEY
BRFEREAERARBEEFENEED
HoEFRA JINEEHEAANFELS
RIBBR TR -
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Year

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A 18. R MIE A 7 R4 Bk 18 &

STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) NRAZERE #)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a structured BRERMBARIN R=ZE—RHFA~NA=1+H

entity during the year ended 30 June 2015 and ifs information FEN AEE-—BEREEKRIIAR BB

is as follows: BERWT :
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/registered
establishment and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BEAR AARARE
HEREK/ ZBEfT
ERAL/ ERIEEN BA& /2R
4% EMREEEE oY 2EE BREAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - - Dormant
Technolgy Limited (formerly known HE 8,700,000\ K& BEEB
as "Beijing HuaKai Fugui Information
Technology Limited")
RIEREEESRRBERAR (B
IREREEEERMERAF)
(note d & i) (Mt Ri)

Note: B 5 -

0) Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information Technolgy Limited 0) RYNEREEEERMARLDA (DR
("Shenzhen Huakai Fugui’) is a structured entity NEHEE J) RS REBXIA
controlled by the Group. The directors of the Company Al e ARAIEEZRARNEEFEEGR
are of the opinion that the Group has the power JIEFREENVBREERRRFTES
to govern the financial and operating policies of HEBMEAREB 2 GREMBREA ©
Shenzhen HuaKai Fugui and is required to consolidate
its result into the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBtE AT 2R
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHET
At end of year: ARG
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMARMG - A 3 493
Share of net assets DIHEEFE - (70)
Impairment VERIE] 3) 3)
Reallocate to assets and liabilities EFHEABHEZSEFEA
of a disposal group classified FIEHEEERBE (MH5E36(a))
as held for sale (note 36(a)) - =
- 420

R BRI

ended 30 June 2015 BE_Z—RAFNA=1THILFE
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19.

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Business registration

Name structure and operations
EfR Y ERREE

1 ES/ 22 ES) bk
ePROgistics Limited (note (a)) Corporate Hong Kong
SENRHRERRAF (i (a)) A BE
eSilk Road Import & Export Corporate Hong Kong
Limited ("eSilk Road") NG Bk

(note (b)) (AiEE(b))
Notes:

(@

No financial information had been provided as

ePROgistics Limited had commenced a deregistration
process in year 2007 and is still in process at the date
of these consolidated financial statements.

®)

On 2 July 2014, the Group disposed of its 49% equity

interests in eSilk Road fo an independent third party
at a consideration of approximately HK$216,000 with a
loss of approximately HK$204,000 (Note 6).

The above associates were not audited by Ascenda

Cachet CPA Limited.

The Group's inferests in the associates were indirectly
held through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group
was entitled to the same percentage of voting power
and profit sharing as denoted in the ownership

percentage.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of eSilk Road extracted from its financial

statements:

Assets

Liabilities
Revenues

Loss for the year

114

DX.com Holdings Limited

| DX.comiZRER A A

19. REEE QT 2R #)

TEMERRZFBEERIAOT

Percentage of
ownership
interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities
AEBfLE
REEZH L TEEK
2015 2014
—E-nf —mE
30 30 Provision of logistic IT
confract services
REDTREAREE ORE
- 49 Provision of E-business
RESFILOEEE
B E
(a) %%é%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ&@ﬂa&*ffti

(®)

HETTFEH AR 7 B Lt 0 AR B 7S A R
HERAGAMBHRERSA - M&%W
EEITH o

R Em—
Fr 5 BeSilk
RoodZAQ%J]x - R{E4)/A216,0007%8
T E51E 49204, 000 7T (Mi7E6) °

N
b
Kt
5°d
M
L EE
- I
*}M
W% m
T -

WA LB ARWIERRIZBG S HEIER
FIBRARER -

$%@F%%QTZ%‘E@@1§W?
ARAEFA - AFEEER B L2
BRRERMEFEBALAREDBF -

T &M uteSilk Roadz B ERE 2R B

HH MK
2015 2014
—E-—EEF — P4
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHET
N/A Fi# 456
N/A FiE (1,021)
N/A T A 10
N/A FiE A 27)




LA
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20.

e

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES INVESTMENT

Notes
ik
Listed investments, at fair value ~ ZAFEERTEEH
and market value equity LTTREREB LT
securities listed in Hong Kong BAES (a)
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRE - BAA (0)
Impairment B

Transfer fo assetfs and liabilities
of a disposal group classified
as held for sale (note 20(a))

B2 4

ENPRARLEZEBE
BEHEEERRE (HHE20(0)

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2015 HE-—E—RAFNA=THILLEFE

20. THHERE

Fair value changes during FERRRZE
the year

Net carrying amount at RAFEZREFE
end of year

Note (a):

As detailed in note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, upon the completion of the disposal of the
E-Perfect Group (as defined in note 36(b), the Group held
186,046,500 shares (the "Consideration Shares”) of GET
Holdings Limited ("GET Holdings”). The Consideration Shares
were classified as available-for-sales investment in the Group.

On 24 March 2015, GET Holdings underwent a capital
reorganisation comprising share consolidation, capital
reducing and share subdivision (the "GET Recognisation”).
Upon completion of the GET Recognisation, the Group held
an aggregate of 18,604,650 shares (as adjusted) of GET
Holdings.

On 5 June 2015, GET Holdings completed a right issue on
the basis of three rights shares for every one existing share
at a price of HK$0.35 per rights share. The Group subscribed
for a total of 55,813,950 rights shares at a consideration of
approximately HK$19,544,000 (including expenses).

As at 30 June 2015, the Group held an aggregate of
74,418,600 shares, representing 9.32% of equity interests in GET
Holdings which were stated at their fair value with reference
tfo the quoted market price in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, resulted in fair value changes of approximately
HK$10,242,000 (note 6) which was debited to the investment
revaluation reserve. As at 30 June 2015, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the available-for-
sales investment was determined to be impaired and the
cumulative loss of HK$10,242,000 in the available-for-sales
investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss
(note 6).

Note (b):
Unlisted shares were stated at cost less impairment and

were reclassified to assets and liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale.

Group Company
5@ KRR
2015 2014 2015 2014
“B-1f —2-mE “E-1F —2-mE
HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
TER TER THR T
48,940 - 48,940 -
- 317
- (317) - -
(10,242) - (10,242) -
38,698 - 38,698 -
it (a)

S AN4R A BT B RS B EE36(b) « B A s B8
B (RHE36L)RT)  ARBEEES S
RARAE ([ S12MK]) 49186,046, 5008 B 3
(THRERG ) - RIEBHIHERAFILERE -

R-ZE-—RAF=A-+WA BHERETT
BAEHE  BEBRME G RAHR R 55
M(EHER BDHEERAEEAREEHE
& & #£18,604,6500% i () (AFFHE) -

R-CZE-—RAFANARB - BHBRTKESE
B LB B £70. 358 TR AL 1T RERERHA
—RIRBABRMHEE=RERBND - AEED &
HRERD9.544,0008 T(BHEEMEZHARE
55,813,950/ A% 15 °

HE_Z-AFXA=1+HE X5ERHEEH
T & #£74,418,6000% i 17 - 1K 5%9.32%M) ik
MZRFEDREBBMEIZHHARRAM
BemBGEAB SHAFEREBRAN
10,242,000/ 7t (Fiiste) WA B E R =
AHEERERB -R-_ZE—HFA=1+H"
EERAAHBEREFRELERIERTHS
EREFBBRANSEZHENIRERAX
o (ffsxe) -

HiaE (o)

FELEMBD BRAREREENDEREH
EZEEREARIELEEERAE -
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'-—‘1—— Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —AENA=-+HILFE

v

21. INVENTORIES 21. 7§
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—B-EF —E-lEF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FTERT FHET
Contract work in progress HEITRHZEHTIRE - -
Merchandise for sale FriFmm = 1
- 1
At the end of the reporting period, the inventories of RB|EBR - NEERAIFRFETRD
the Group carrying at net realisable value amounted FEHREET(ZZ—MF : 1,000%8
to approximately HKSNil (2014: HK$1,000). JL) °
=%
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWE 5 IR
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 393 83,464
Due from contract customers fEd & 8P (i Eta)
(note a) - 10,194
Impairment B - (277)
393 93,381
Note (a): Mi5E(a) ¢
Contract work in progress: EITHZEHIRE
Contract costs incurred plus B AT FTE £ 6 QKA
recognised profits less N TR & TR
recognised losses to date R EE - 12,197
Less: Progress billings B HRHE TR N AR - (2,003)
Gross amount due from & HE P RIELRE
contract customers - 10,194

]B DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BE_Z—RAFNA=THILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BWEZ RN @
The movements in provision for impairment of trade INTREWNE ZEFAMEZ & :

receivables are as follows:

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lEF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FTERT FET
At 1 July mntA—H 277 1,865
Reversal of impairment (note 5) B ERE (FFEES) - a73)
Amount written off as uncollectible i #5TaE 1 = 2 X IB - (1.399)
Reallocate to assets and liabilities EFHEABHEZ SERER
of a disposal group classified HIEREEERBE (HE36(a))
as held for sale (note 36(a)) (277) =
Exchange realignment PE i S - 16)
At 30 June MWAA=Z+E - )
Except for e-commerce and new customers, the BRTEFRAEEMEPN REBEAR
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly PrzBKRETERTZERLRN -aRER
on credit, where payment in advance is normally BriRat e o  EN EEERA
required. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by SE2EWERDTESBEFPERE - L
senior management. In view of the aforementioned BEANGERARBEPZBER - BEERR
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables TEEE -
relate to diversified customers, there is no significant
concenftration of credit risk. Trade receivables are
non-interest bearing.
A full payment in advance is normally required EFAKCEP —MAZEIELENR &
for e-commerce customers. Therefore, there is no BTEAKZEPTEEREEREME -
significant credit risk for e-commerce business.
The Group's terms on credit sales primarily range from RNEE 2 BREE AR — M H30K =180k

30 to 180 days (2014: 30 to 180 days). £ (ZZT—1M4F : 30KE180K) °
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —RAF A SA=-THILFE

B R IR AR P RE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

Current BN HEA

31 - 60 days 31 - 60k

61 - 90 days 61 - 90K

91 - 180 days 91 - 180K
Over 180 days HE180K

118

DX.com Holdings Limited

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are
not (neither individually nor collectively) considered to
be impaired is as follows:

R R R OB E
BHIR—EA
Y —=={EA
BE==R]EA
i< 8 A

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

3 to 6 months past due

Over 6 months

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

| DX.comiZRER A A

22.

EWE SRR 2

PRMEHR RERQHFEZEKES
R ZERE MM

Group

rEH
2015 2014
—2-hfF —T-mEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
190 93,100
180 271
23 -
- 10
393 93,381

W IR ABAE (T im B B SRR E) 2 &

WE ZER RO MAMT

Group

rEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
190 92,830
180 411
- 130
23 10
393 93,381

I 45 380 H 7 R O (EL 2 B MR AR o B T R o
RIBEZ D EEP Z R -

BHERREBURRERAERE R
LHRZEPER REBEIRR  ARE
EEZVESAEY Mt FERMDER
AAEZHRE - BARREERRBA
UL S AERIE LR ERE - REE W ER I
EREBBETAEMARELEMBERES -



23.

24,

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2015 BHE T —HFSA=-THILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. A ZE - e R HipE

RECEIVABLES QL]
Group Company
REE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-RHE —T-NF ZT-HF —T-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

TER FHET TER FHET

Prepayments B RIE 280 2,642 78 79

Trade deposits BH5Re 65,137 75,787 - -
Deposits and other e REMEKK

receivables 13,740 20,274 529 300

Frozen amounts (note (a)) 1 A& TR (MR (o)) 39,156 156 - -

118,313 98,859 607 379

Note a: As detailed in note 40 to the consolidated Mtk : B 4R & B IS KX W 5240« & &

financial statements, the balances of US$5,000,000
(equivalents tfo an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$39,000,000) and US$20,000 ) (EEERERE) DT -0
(equivalents to approximately HK$156,000) FENARZE—ZF+AFRREERR
(collectively as the “Frozen Amounts’) had ﬁﬂﬁ (PayPal) R #&Z R E - EE M
been frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and PayPal, REAZERETEC RS LB
respectively, since August 2014 and October 2012, MAEEEETHA BWHREESEHSE
respectively. The directors consider that the Frozen BlHMEIEE] -

Amounts have been frozen and were temporarily

restrained for the Group’s free usage and

therefore, such balance were re-classified as “other

receivables” during the year.

5,000,000 7T (& #£4H% 4939.000,000
7 7T) #120,0003 7T (18 5 74156.000/%

None of the above assets is either past due or BMEL LEERBEBRE RE - Ll
impaired. The financial assets included in the above BREZEMEEDNEEAWEBRILEZ
balances relate to receivables for which there was no KBRS -

recent history of default.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 24, %
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS A

E‘U&EEZJ:FE

nF
ARERE

Group
3 3.
2015 2014
—ZE-0fF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FHT
Listed equity investments, BEAEMZzERIEE -
at market value in EmEFE
Hong Kong - 1.830
The fair values of the equity investments as at 30 June MN-ZE—NMESNA=TH e@IREZA
2014 were determined based on the quoted market FETBEIRBIFES ZTRERLE
bid prices available on The Stock Exchange. Such T o-RAENEEZHLE o

investments have been fully disposed during the year.
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts ®REIE¥EAF

25.

TTEEMEE

Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =K BE am
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET FHET FHET
- - 512 -

The Group has no outstanding forward currency
contract as at 30 June 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
entered info a forward currency contract (the
"Derivative 1") with a bank in the amount of
US$8,300,000 against RMB to manage ifs exchange
rate exposures. The maturity date of the Derivative 1
was 2 July 2014. Subsequently, the Group entered into
another forward currency contract (the "Derivative
2", together with Derivative 1, the "Derivatives”) of
RMB against US$ to set off the Derivative 1 so as tfo
maximize its gain. Gain on change in the fair value of
the Derivatives of approximately US$65,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$512,000 (note 5)) was recongised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2014. The above transaction
involving derivative financial instrument is carried out
with a creditworthy financial institution.

The Derivatives are not designated for hedge purposes
and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d

RZZE—RFRA=Z+H AEETEE
MAREEZEHEEER -

RZZE-—HERAZTHLEFE A&
EERTAIVEMNEEAR(TTETA
1) 738,300,000 T LA RY - it E
BHEXRBR TETAIZBHBER-Z
—OFLtAZR -RERZ AEEFTLE
HEkaR ((TTEITA2I RTETAY
BHWITTETRD RAREY X ETHRE
HOTET R AR BROTAET
EMAan BEZH 2 WaBEEH /65,000
7T (K #14512,000% 7T (FI3E5)) B £
AREERN-_Z-—MERA=THEEHE
Bk PP RITESRIANZSFR
EEGERFNEBBEEET -

RIFEROTAE T AR I A2 AERIERE H
MEMEFEZRAFEFABRR -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. B R ESZEEERD

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Re RRITHES
EHER

Less: Pledged time deposits i REEURERAT

for securing banking BMEmMER 2
facilities (note 29) TE 37 0 (H15229)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEAEEER

At the end of the reporting period, cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi ("RMB”) amounted to HK$1,358,680
(2074: HKS$8,112,000) in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible intfo other currencies. However, under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Seftlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The banking facilities of the Group were secured by:

0) corporate unlimited guarantee executed by the
Company during the years ended 30 June 2015
and 2014; and

(i) the Group’'s time deposits amounting
to approximately HK$19,983,000 (20714:
approximately HK$19,728,000) as at 30 June
2015.

=,
KHFEMX
Group Company
A AL

2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Hf Z—T-NF Z—B-HF —T—WEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER FET FTET FHET
63,741 88,293 40,990 40,620
19,983 19,728 - -
83,724 108,021 40.990 40,620
(19.983) (19.728) - -
63,741 88,293 40,990 40,620

REMEHRR  AEERABAARERE
12 R& NMIRITHEHRR1,358,6808 T (=
T —M4F : 8,112,000/ 7) - ARKERA
B BB EMINE - AT BRIEAM
TEINEERGH RAE SERNEE
BHRE ARBREAERBEREETINE
RHZBITBARBHBREMINEG -

REEZIRITRE TIAT IS BRI -

0) RZE-—RER_ZT-—MERHA
=TH AQAELHZERER
AIER R

(i) R-ZT-—FEEXA=+RAE
EWNEBHEFERcE TERY
19,983,000/ 7T (= F — U4 : 4
19,728,000/% 7T)
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Year ended 30 June 2015 HE T —AENA=-+HILFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is

as follows:

Current BIHR

31 - 60 days 31 - 60K
61 - 90 days 61 - 90K
Over 90 days B iB90K

28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Normally, a full payment in advance is required from
e-commerce customers (the “e-Customers”) upon
placing orders. As at 30 June 2015, the deposits
received in advance of approximately HK$7,845,000
(2014: approximately HK$13,204,000) represented
deposits received from the e-Customers for
merchandises delivered by the Group subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7

27.

28.

“"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BN E SRR

e B 5 8RR 3RS B R 0 Bl R AN 5 B HR
HetZREDHMAT :

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—E-5fF —T—F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FET FHET
3,985 5,855
9,352 143
38 -
11,813 10,065
25,188 16,063

FWEE

BETEBzER [EFEFP) —RAHE
BEM2EBEENR - R-F—HF<A
=t+tHBIE ZEFEFPIEMLT.845000
BT (ZZ—4F : £913,204,000/%8 7T) /&
BURBEES ANEBECRNEE RZEH
MEREXRGAETP °
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING  29. 3+ ESR{T{E =X

Group
rEE
Effective interest rate Maturity 2015 2014
BRI =E(%) B A —E—HF —T—F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHExT FHET
Bank loan - secured  2.2% July 2015
—hF+EA
IRITER-EER 10,000 10,000
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE-F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHET FHET
Analysed into: =
Bank loan repayable AR—FNEE
within one year RITE R 10,000 10,000
Notes: B 5
The bank borrowing of the Group is secured by: AEEZEITERTIUA TS BERER
0) a corporate unlimited guarantee executed by the 0) AARMEH 2 BREARER R
Company; and
(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits (i) NEER —REFEAA=Z+H &
amounting tfo approximately RMB12,412,000 JFfEHﬂTTM%W 412,000A R % (T &
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,491,000) (note 26) #) /15,491,000 7T) (FifsE26) (=&
(2014: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately — P94 : 4912,000,000A R ¥ (7 & 4
HK$14,958,000)) as at 30 June 2015. 514,958,000/ 70) ) Z i o
30. NOTE PAYABLES 30. ENEE
Group and Company
AEEREAAT
Effective Interest rate Maturity 2015 2014
BRFIE(%) ZEMA —Z-5F —T-mE
HK$°000 HKS$’ 000
THERx THAT
1st Note 9% 29 Moy 2016
F-HER E-RNEFRA=-t+NH 30,000 =
2nd Note 9% 10 June 2016
—HER ZE-R"EXRTH 21,700 =
3rd Note 9% 30 June 2016
—HERE —E-REXAZTH 30,000 o
81,700 =
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30.

NOTE PAYABLES (continued)

On 11 May 2015, the Company entfered info a placing
agreement ("Placing Agreement”) with Convoy
Asset Management Limited (the ‘Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which, the Placing Agent agreed to act
as the placing agent of the Company, on a best
endeavour basis, fo procure the placee(s) (and its
respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), if applicable)
who shall be third party(ies) independent of, and not
connected with the Company, ifs connected persons
(within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) and
their respective associate(s), fo subscribe for the 9%
per annum notes (the "Notes”) to be issued by the
Company with an aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$200,000,000, maturing on the first anniversary of
the issue date of the Notes at a placing price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes (the
"Placing”). The placing period (the "Placing Period”)
for the Placing shall initially last for a period of one
month commencing in the day immediately following
the date of the Placing Agreement. The Company
may, by notice in writing to the Placing Agent, extend
the Placing Period for another month. If the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes successfully placed
by the Placing Agent during the Placing Period is
less than HK$50,000,000, the Company is not obliged
to issue the Notes to the placee(s) pursuant to
the Placing Agreement and the Company has the
absolute discretion on determining whether the Notes
shall be so issued. There is no security or pledge
offered by the Group for issuing of the Notfes. As at
30 June 2015, the three Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$81,700,000 were issued by the
Company, details of which are as follows:

(a) On 29 May 2015, the Company issued the first
note with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000.

(b) On 10 June 2015, the Company issued the
second note with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$21,700,000.

©) On 30 June 2015, the Company issued the third
note with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d

30. EREEH @

RZTE-—HEFRA+—B ARAHE
Convoy Asset Management Limited
(RERE))  FTUEEHRE ([REH
#D B BERBREBECARFZ
FLERIE - WIRBH KRG LR KA
EEXAREEBz&ERERERA (WHE
R (BREARBIE=F FEHAEAR
AIRARRzEEANL(EEREZER L
THRED EEESEZBEALHEEM
BE)RBEBARFABETASERSE
200,000,000 7t v F B R9E R ([F
B REREZEEBHEERZBREZATE
B9100% - I % 70 317 A Bl 55 — B F
ZBEHS(RERIEEHE]) - HEEE
ZEEHRNIEREBREEHRI LA
Bz T —RRsm— @A BEE - ARF
ERMEEREREERBMCAEE P
BIER—ER - i SR IERE S B
W L& 2 7K & 48 %8 2> 5°50,000,000
B RBEEHRE ARFHBEEER
ABRABTER UEREEIWBERE
ELEBTEE -R-_ZE—RHAF A=+
H ARARBEMTIREE A& HE%
81,700,000/% 7T 7~ & [0 8 Bt 35 17 R 1%
TER R ERIER - FRAFEBNT

(@ R-E-HEEREA-+tARA &
A B E 1T /K & #8 %8 A30,000,000
TS — RS -

il

) R-F—HEANATE KA
B E1TA & 4% /£21,700,000 &
THE R -

) R-E-RENA=+H AR
Al E 17N £ 4258 £30,000,000 B
THE= I -
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. IEEBIE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEBEERE
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHET
At 1 July mntA—H 10,470 9,700
Deferred tax (credited)/charged FREE) FtALEERERZ
to consolidated statement of EETIR
profit or loss during the year
- from continuing operation —RBEEER - =
- from discontinued operation —RIEREET (4,523) 770
Reallocate to assets and liabilities EFHAABEHEZSEREA
of a disposal group classified FIEREEEKBE (H:36(a))
as held for sale (note 36(a)) (5.947) -
At 30 June RANA=+H - 10,470
Deferred tax assets ELEBEEE
The above deferred tax liabilities represented taxable HREEHBEREZHNEREOESHK
temporary differences arising from amount due from TR (Mi§E22) BE A 7 FERR LR 1 22 48 -
contract customers (note 22).
The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax BERBEMRZEAABEERE RES
assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax rates B RERPEZELEHRED I R16.5%
in Hong Kong, United Kingdom and the PRC at 16.5% (ZF— % :16.5%) » 20% (ZF— M4
(2014: 16.5%), 20% (2014: 20%), 25% (2014: 25%), 20%) - 25% (= F — M4 : 25%) ' &t &
respectively, on cumulative temporary differences at AEERERZETCHBEEZ EEZKMN
the end of the reporting period, are as follows: LU
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FTERT FHET
Tox losses Mg EE
- from continuing operation -RHEEEER 10,363 3,505
- from discontinued operation - RIEEEER 7.312 4,456
Accelerated depreciation IR E R R R
allowances
- from continuing operation - BREKEEY 32 10)
- from discontinued operation - BRI 29) 10)
17,678 7,941
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31.

32.

DX.com Holdings Limited

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$100,300,000, in which, as to HK$75,527,000
were arising from the contfinuing operation (2014:
HK$46,017,000), that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group
did not have tax losses arising in the PRC that are
available for offsetting against the following five years’
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose (2014: Nil). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time.

At 30 June 2015, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2014: Nil) for
tfaxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or
associates.

SHARE CAPITAL

Note
ik
Authorised : EE
Ordinary shares SREE
of HK$0.01 each 0.01E T &Rk
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At beginning of year, ordinary REEY BRERE
shares of HK$0.01 each 0.01ETZ Bk
Open offer of shares RREERHR (a)

REER
EREBOOET EBR

At end of year,

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
(a) On 8 July 2014, the Company completed an
open offer of 509,451,557 offer shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.10 on the basis of
one offer share for every ten existing shares
held. The net proceeds from the open offer,
after deducting directly attributable costs were
approximately HK$49,851,000.

| DX.comiZRER A A

31.

32.

Number
of shares
RA%AE

10,000,000,000

EERIE )

EEREAERE (#)

RBREPRR FEERETBELEBRD
& 18 5 5 £100,300,000% 7T+ & &
75,527 0008 T = M EKLEXBME L
(ZZ—VO4 : 46,017,000/ 7T) A] K
AR REZERBAN - AEBEBER
TRELATRAREEZSARERALFE
RBEF 2 RBEE (T —0F &) -
HRZEBBEREE BN —RERZHE
NA) ML R SRR IE T IR B E T

RZZ—RAFNA=Z+H AEEBLER
BT B A B S 2 QR 2 ARE L & T E
NZBEMAEERE B2 RERIELED
BEE(CT—WFE : HE) -

RN

2015
—2-1f

2014
—I-mE
Number
of shares

UG

Nominal
value
HfE
HK$" 000
THL

Nominal
value
HE
HK$' 000
TR

100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000

5,094,515,570
509,451,557

50,945  5,094,615,570 50,945
5,095 - -

5,603,967,127

56,040  5,094,515,570 50,945

RZZB-—OFLANA AQF
TERK A 7 8 5509,451,657 18 # &
iy - RIBEROIOETT  REH
BEHEBRBEABRMNEE - BEER
2 2% EMKEEIE A 5B K
g AHEBEEZMBHREFR
#9/349,851,000% 7T °

(@
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
the share opfions issued under the scheme and as
follows:

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 12
February 2007, adopted a share option scheme (“the
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest (the ‘Invested Entity”). Eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the directors and employees of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity, suppliers and
customers of the Group or any Invested Enfity, any
person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support fo the Group or any Invested
Entity, any adviser or consultant fo any area of
business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Enfity, any joint venture
partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity in
any area of business operation or development and
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.
The Share Option Scheme should, unless ofherwise
terminated or amended, remain in force for ten years
from 12 February 2007.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 12 February 2007, being
the date of adoption of the Share Opfion Scheme,
(i.e. not exceeding 24,012,000 shares, which were
subsequently refreshed to 525,908,357 shares in
year 2012). The Company may seek approval of the
shareholders in a general meeting for refreshing the
10% limit under the Share Option Scheme save that
the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company under the limit as “refreshed” shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.
Options previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any ofther schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit.

33.

BREsTE

ARBERES S MREZETERETZ
BREFBENT

ARBRER-_TET+LFE_A+_BE
B RBRREMBRES ([HBIER
2]) - 5EE B EE Y AN E E B & B
ZEBRRSEER B AEEER

BREBEBREERTMAEAEE R AERR
ERABREZERE((REER))EEKX
BEZANER -BREFEZAERKR
HEBEARARG HNB AR S EMREE
BERVEELEES AEERAMIKEE
BOHERSES A @ AE B ER
HEEERENT FREARMZEZA
THEE AEETAKE QR SKEMIE
EEBZEBIEBERZAWEHE 2B
BEAA - BRAEBIMKERRHT
MIEEEREREBERBRE 2 ANHE
AEZAABHREBESE UERAEE
FEEBEARSKEMKETRE 2 ERKRRE
FAAEETMREAR KT MREETE
BT 2AMEEZTAHEA - BRE
B BRIESFUARIERET  BH=-ZZ
+tE_A+-AE—BEER AT EF-

BIEERENE R TEREZROBE
THBEARIR_ZETLF_A+=H
BT 2 RMB BT’ M 210% (BN
T B A A 7]24,012,00008 f% 17+ 10 BE 12
R-E— - FF#HE525,908,357) ° A
NAIABEFRBEERE S 2 10%R 58
RBREAE ESKREIE - ERTER
E BRI AE T ) K AR R BT ] H i B RS 4 T
B T 22 BEREMIZBLEENRE
A FETZRMDBEE BRI NHESE
FIRBEABEEITRMEEZ10% - £ 7T
BB 8 AR AR E 5T 8
2 BERE(BREZERARITE - B5FHE -
B R EAR B B AR A T B S A B A AT &)
BITE2HERE) SR ERBREMS T
AHETEA -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any ofher share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to fime. The number of shares
issued and fo be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding opfions)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant.
Each grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already
and fo be granted in excess 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, save that
such period shall not be more than ten years from the
date of the offer of the share options subject to the
provisions for early termination set out in the Share
Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before the exercise of the
subscription right attaching thereto except otherwise
imposed by the board of directors. The exercise price
is determined by the directors of the Company but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2015, there was no option
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. No
options were granted/exercised/lapsed/cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme during the year.

As at the date of this annual report, the fotal number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 525,908,357, representing approximately
9.4% of the issued share capital of the Company.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d

33. BRESTE (2

BT B SR 51 B S AR R AE A E A B IR A
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BETERERITEBRE) 2EHTH
B FETROHEBE NMFEEHALQFSHR
ERABCDEHTRNZ1% - AERES -
BEEATERTERRRHBREARES
SIEMITESIE

A EERRIARFBIIFRNTESH
WEXBZBMEAIREBERE <8
BER TSR 2 BT R m T RS
BT Z AR RN EBARFBAZ0.1%
5 & B #2 #55,000,0007% 7T - A8 = 5% B
BARBRRILAE -

By Bz EEAENES R HR28RA
B THARABMNERIBTZAE
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11/ KB BUE A BB AR AE -

EARFHA - Al BRI S H TR RN
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34. RESERVES

(@)

(®)

The Group

R BRI

Year ended 30 June 2015 BE-_Z—RAF X NA=1THIFE

34. RE

C))

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 44

and 45 of this annual report.

The Company

AT July 2013 RZE-Z%+f-A

Loss for the year and fotal ~~ AEEEER2AFBEE
comprehensive loss forthe  (Hft11)
year (nofe 11)

At 30 June 2014 and RZE-BEXRRZTAK
1 July 2014 “E-mELA-A

Open Offer of shares LRRERR
(note 32(a)) (H&32(a))

Loss for the year and fotal ~ AEEFER2EURLE
comprehensive income (H&N)
for the year (note 11)

Decrease in fair value of ~ WHEERE
available-for-sales MEZEY
investment (note 20) (W3t20)

Reclassification EEHERE
adjustment fo profit REHFBHE
or loss on impairment (H20)

loss on available-for-sales
investment (note 20)

At 30 June 2015 R-E-EERAZTA

Share premium

EN

ARERRE RBEFEZ R
F 3 B WO B A 4F 44145
R LR

(b) EAF

Available-

for-sales

Capital Investment

Share premium redemption revaluation Retained

account reserve reserve profits Total

| THEERE
RHEER fite HERE REEA &t
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HKS$"000 HK$" 000 HK$"000
Tin Tikn Tk Thn TR
- 3,526 - 121,661 125,187
- - - (35,424) (35,424
- 3,526 - 86,237 89,763
44,756 - - - 44,756
- - (74,000) (74,000)
- - (10,242) - -
- - 10,242 - -
44,756 3,526 - 12,237 60,519

RN 5 1B

The share premium account of the Company
includes premium arising from the new issue of
shares in the current and prior years netted of

share issue expenses.

ARmZzBEEREELRAFE
REFEBRTHRELEZEEN
BRI BATRX -
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(®)

The Company (Continued)

Share premium (Continued)

Under section 34 of the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the special
reserve and share premium account is
available for distribution to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company which was in
effect before the Change of Domicile (defined
as below) becoming effective on 20 August
2015 (Bermuda time) and no distribution may
be paid to shareholders out of the special
reserve and share premium account unless,
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company shall be able fo pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant tfo a special resolution passed on 6
August 2015, the change of domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda
was approved by the shareholders. The change
of domicile of the Company was subsequently
completed on 21 August 2015 (the "Change
of Domicile”). Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve/Contributed surplus

The capital reserve account of the Company
includes the difference between fthe
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefore.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed
subsequent to the end of the reporting period
on 6 August 2015, the amount of approximately
HK$44,756,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Group was
cancelled and ftransferred to an account
designated as capital reserve account. Upon
the Change of Domicile of the Company, such
account was to be rename as "Contributed
surplus accounts”.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d

34. f#E )
(b) Z&AF &
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EEMEARECERRIE-
ARREMERR -_ZT-—RF
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7T ADIK °
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—RETEFELALTEETZE
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SEBEMEERNERESRY
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ERmzBMAR  ZEPHE
MR EREHRAR -
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(®)

The Company (Continued)

Capital reserve/Contributed surplus
(Continued)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the capital reserve account
of the Company is distributable fo the equity
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the distribution or
payment of dividend, the Company is able fo
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

After the Change of Domicile of the Company,
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
confributed surplus account is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of confributed surplus
if:

— the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

— the realisable value of the Company’s
assefs would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium
account.

Capital redemption reserve/Treasury
share reserve

Balance represented an amount equivalent
tfo the par value of the shares cancelled of
HK$3,526,000 which was transferred from the
retained profits to the capital redemption
reserve during the years ended 30 June
2072 and 2013, pursuant to section 37 of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Upon
the Change of Domicile, such account was
fo be renamed as “Treasury share reserve”
account.

Available-for-sales investment
revaluation reserve

The available-for-sales investment revaluation
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
fair value of available-for-sales investment held at
the end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with accountfing policy in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

34. #E )

(b)

RRDF (#)
B EHE S (B

REFEHEREE (BRIAX)
ARABWERFERAT 2K T A
NREERBR  EREBFEL D
KRB IR AR A B B
NEEBFEBEERINEH

BIE

RArEMBER RigaRE
—hAN—FRAE BEHAKK
A D IR T AR AT - i 3 A LA
TER - BIARRABE IR LK
RS - A BHABTERDIK

— AR BBRE RERMN KA
EZEEEHIHERE %

—  ARAAEMTEREE
ERA &SRO RHBE
REEBTRA LR
32 5 ) 407

B E L JE 7R
#E
RZE—ZFRZT—ZFk=
T-ZFENAZTHLEEIER
EREFIER G EER3,526,000
BITHRBENEAELREE R
B HEREREES (AR
F37E - RBM A% - BAERLF
BeETTRAETRAFHE -

AR ERE I 1

AHEEREHERBERZERER
SMAABAHREEREN DR
BEEHRFASHE IREFAY
BRRM 2. AP G Rt R IR -
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

35, HEMB X E

(a) 30 June 2015 (@ =—B-FEFEXA=+A
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group REBE-ZZ-—RAFA=+AHLE
disposed of certain subsidiaries as follows: FE AEBHREETHBAR -
HEWT
The E-Perfect Group TEEE
As detailed in note 36(b) to the consolidated AN A B 75 ¥R T 236 () T Rt
financial statement, the disposal of the mHEEEEEEEIN T
E-Perfect Group was completed on 31 July —MFEEA=+—HZXK -
2014.
Fortune People MR
On 28 February 2015, the Group entered into RZZF-AF-A-+/\B K
an agreement with an independent third party, %Eﬁ?ﬁ%l%iﬁﬂ\ — i
pursuant to which, the Group disposed of its REH#H AEBHEAMRER
100% equity interests in Fortune People Limited R (TR PREA 2100%k
("Fortune People”) at a cash consideration of E(HREEHEF®E]D BeKE
HK$1,690,000 (the “Fortune People Disposal”). 731,690,0008 7T ° ff R HH & F 18
Fortune People Disposal was completed on 28 BER-ZE-AF A=+ //\HZK
February 2015.
Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are as HYEWMB AR ZEEBEMT -
follows:
The E-Perfect Fortune
Group People Total
ZEEH BR A%
HK$ 000 HK$" 000 HKS’ OOO
FAET FHET FHBT
(note 36(b))
(M 5E36(b))
Property, plant and W - e RHRE
equipment 533 - 533
Other intangible assets Hh & B 15,782 - 15,782
Inventories EASY 38 - 38
Trade receivables FEWE 5 1A 2,794 764 3,558
Tax refundable AR IR 109 - 109
Prepayments, deposits and 858 2 & &
other receivables H B WK IE 2,486 318 2,804
Pledged deposits [REGE TN - 70 70
Cash, bank balances Be  |ITERRIES
and deposits 10,646 435 11,081
Trade payables e 8 5 KIA - a9) a9
Other payables and accruals i fiE - 5118 & fE 51 & (443) (42) (485)
Deferred revenue BT A (2.549) - (2.549)
Due to immediate holding FERHE IR A B FROE
company - (2,462) (2.462)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(Af)FHE 29,396 (936) 28,460
Waiver of amount due to BUE R A B
immediate holding
company - 2,462 2,462
29,396 1,526 30,922
Gain on disposal of HENB AR Z e
subsidiaries (B 3E556)
(notes 5 and 6) = 164 164
29,396 1,690 31,086
Satisfied by: AT A AZA
Cash Re - 1,690 1,690
Consideration shares RE®RD 29,396 - 29,396
29,396 1,690 31,086

DX.com Holdings Limited
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

30 June 2015 (Continued)
An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of the

cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
disposal of subsidiaries are as follows:

35. HEMB QT &)

Cash consideration ReRE

Cash and bank balance T E RS RIRITA R
disposed of

Net inflow/(outflow) of cash BRALEHEBAGZ
and cash equivalents in ReERERRESIEE

respect of the disposal of WA G 48

subsidiaries

30 June 2014
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries as follows:

EPRO BJ

On 17 January 2014, the Group entfered into
an agreement with an independent third party,
Oasis Island Ventures Limited (the "Purchaser”),
a company incorporafted in Hong Kong with
limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Oriental Unicorn Agricultural
Group Limited, whose shares are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
pursuant to which, the Group disposed of (the
"EPRO BJ Disposal”) its 100% equity interests in
EPRO Computer Systems (Beijing) Company
Limited ("EPRO BJ”) at a cash consideration
of HK$3,000,000. The EPRO BJ Disposal was
completed on 15 May 2014.

EPRO SG

On 29 January 2014, the Group further entered
info an agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Group disposed
of (the "EPRO SG Disposal”) its 90% equity
interests in EPRO Systems (S) Pte. Limited ("EPRO
SG") at a cash consideration of HK$300,000.
The EPRO SG Disposal was completed on 31
January 2014.

(@ =Z2-aFXA=t+H#)
ERAHEWNBARIZRE e RER
Be&BEFERA (RE) 20
FuNE

E-Perfect Fortune

Group People Total
EEEE R &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FHET

- 1,690 1,690
(10,646) (435) (11,081)
(10,646) 1,255 (9.391)

() =—B-MEXA=+AH

RAFE AEEBHEE TN

BAE - SEWT
SHEIR

RZF-OF-A+EB X&E
EEBUFE=HHEEAMKARA
AUTERD  —HREBEBEMA
NZBERRE REBEREEEH
BERAFDZEAEZEWNB AR
HBROEEBEBAZSMERA
BAIER EM) RIS — D R
B AKEHE ([5ELR
HEFRDESEEKER (ULR)
ERAA (TS EILR]) 2100%
B - 4838 $ A {8 /&3,000,000/8
T ZELRHEFERER_F
—EERAATHAREK

EPRO SG

R-T—WE—A=-+hB XK
EEEBTE=HE D
WEHZE NEBE LS ([EPRO
SG HEEE]) HEPRO Systems
(S) Pte. Limited ([EPRO SGJ)
BHEZ0%KE RERBAOR
300,000/ Jt e EPRO SGHi & =18
ERZZT—WFE—A=+—HB%K -
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

DX.com Holdings Limited |

30 June 2014 (Continued)

Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are as

follows:

Property, plant and
equipment (note 15)

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash, bank balances and
deposits

Trade payables

Other payables and
accruals

Net liabilities

Realisation of exchange
reserve

Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (Notes 5 & 6)

Satisfied by:
Cash

ME - BB k&
(HIEE15)
e
&Y E 5 8RR
BNRE - Re Rk
H 8 YRR

He  RITEBREER

A B 5 B
S AR
Mt A

& R E
255 4

& BT B A B8 s
(M55 & 6)

AT A A
Be

An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of

subsidiaries are as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balance
disposed of

Net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of
the disposal of subsidiaries

BERME
EREZHE N

RIT#E

FRHERBLRZ

RoRASEEY
BA

DX.comiZ R B IR 1 7]

35. HEMB QT &)

(b) =Z-—mEXA=+H#E)
PEMBARZHBOT :
EPRO BJ Total
5%i"  EPROSG =H)
HK$* 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FET
57 - 57
2 - 2
2,418 908 3,326
3,415 50 3,465
2,043 74 2,117
(404) (246) (650)
(9.969) (1,203) (11.172)
(2.438) (417) (2.855)
5,155 514 5,669
283 203 486
3,000 300 3,300
3,000 300 3,300
FHALEWNBRARI R RE®
ZEWMFERAZTAOT :
EPRO BJ Total
5%4"  EPROSG &t
HK$* 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FHET
3,000 300 3,300
(2.043) (74) (2.117)
957 226 1.183
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36. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL 36. #
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(@)

30 June 2015

On 21 April 2015, the Company entered
info a sale and purchase agreement (the
"Agreement”) with China Mobile Games And
Cultural Investment Limited, an independent
third party. Pursuant to the Agreement,
the Company disposed of (the "EPRO BVI
Disposal”) its 100% equity interest in EPRO
(BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries (except for
EPRO Systems Limited) (the “EPRO BVI Group”)
at a consideration of HK$40,000,000, subject
fo upward adjustments with a maximum
consideration of HK$120,000,000.

As at 30 June 2015, the EPRO BVI Disposal has
not yet been completed and the assets and
liabilities of the EPRO BVI Group to be disposed
were re-classified as “assets and liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale” which
were separatfely presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and were
stated at lower of their carrying amounts
and the fair values less costs to sell, which is
estimated to be HK$61,262,000. Accordingly,
an impairment of assets of a disposal group of
approximately HK$36,394,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2015. The EPRO
BVI Disposal was completed subsequent to the
end of the reporting period on 31 August 2015.

HECEERERFE

HENEEREE

C))

—E-RFXA=1H
RZE—RFWA=-_+—H &K
AREBYE=ZFHFBEFEX
HEERAAY —MEE B
(MZWazl) - RiIEZIHE - XA F
H & HHEPRO (BVI) Limited 2 &
BOHBRAR (BT HERRAF)
([EPRO BVI£E ) 2 100%k% 7 4
= ([HH&EPRO BVIFIHE]) &A1
{8 /40,000,000 7T (7] ¥ LM
&5~ {EA120,000,000/87T) °

R-ZBE-—HEA=+H HE
EPRO BVIE B {H AR T » MR
+ =& A W i & ZEPRO BVI% H
BhLEEREBECETHPEEDE
ERELECHESEEERE
BERGEAVBERABRRASHE
Bl Wik EZREEREQFER
HER A (fH5H4961,262,0005 7T)
MEPZREEINEE - At - HE
£ @ 2 B ERE#36,394,0008
TERBEE-_Z—RAFE~NA=1
BLEFEZHRABERANER -
HHEEPRO BVIEB R R E HAR%Z
R-ZE—AFNA=Z+—HB=EK
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36. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL 36. S HECEBREARSE

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE HENEEREE
(a) 30 June 2015 (Continued) (@) —E-AFEXNA=+AHE)
Carrying amount  Impairment  Net amount
1R E & HE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TERT TERT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BE M & &
(note 15) (M¥3E15) 3,182 (920) 2,262

Interest in an associate (note 19) REE& R 2 = (HFE19) - = =
Available-for-sales investment A gt 1 €15 & (Mi5£20)

(note 20) - - -
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 116,115% (33,572) 82,543
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE- Rk

other receivables H & W 5RR 6,577 (1,902) 4,675
Tax refundable BRGRE 22 - 22
Due from a fellow subsidiary GRS =G 50,269 - 50,269
Cash, bank balances and Be  fITHEBRRER

deposits 13,259 - 13,259

189,424 (36.394) 153,030
Less: Inter company balance W EE AN R
Due from a fellow subsidiary — fE4t[A R KB A 7 (50,269) - (50,269)
Total assets of the disposal HHE SBBEARE
group classified as HELEHLE
held for sale 139,155 (36,394) 102,761
(note 6)
(FizE6)
Liabilities afE
Trades payables ENESER 647 - 647
Other payables and accruals Hin I RIE R EF AR 31,840 - 31,840
Deferred revenue R = 356 - 356
Interest-bearing bank borrowing & BR1TE R 2,709 - 2,709
Deferred tax liabilities (note 31)  EIEF A& & (M 7E31) 5,947 - 5,947
Total liabilities directly HEHEARELENEE

associated with assets EXFHEEELE

classified as held for sale 41,499 - 41,499
Net assets of the disposal group HHEEEZFEE 97,656 (36,394) 61,262
The fair value less costs to sell A F & 8 E KA 61,262
& net of an impairment loss of HK$277,000 (note * B R TR (B # & £9277,000

22) 7 (1 3E22)
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36. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

(b)

30 June 2014

On 10 June 2014, the Group entered info a sale
and purchase agreement (the "Agreement”)
with Mission Win International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GET Holdings Limited
(formerly known as "M Dream Inworld Limited”)
("GET Holdings”), an independent third party.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group disposed
of (the “E-Perfect Disposal”) its 100% equity
interest in E-Perfect IT Limited and its subsidiary
(the “E-Perfect Group”) at a consideration of
HK$48,000,000, which would be satisfied by the
allotment and issue of 186,046,500 new shares
(the "Consideration Shares”) at an issue price
of HK$0.258 per share by GET Holdings to the
Group.

As at 30 June 2014, the E-Perfect Disposal had
not yet been completed and the assets and
liabilities attributable to the E-Perfect Group to
be disposed within twelve months had been
re-classified as assets and liabilities of the
disposal group classified as held for sale and
were separately presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and were stated
at lower of their carrying amounts and the fair
values less costs to sell. The E-Perfect Disposal
was completed on 31 July 2014. With reference
tfo the share price of GET Holdings, the fair
value of the Consideration Shares decreased
tfo HK$29,396,000 at the completion date on
31 July 2014 and accordingly, an impairment
on the non-current assets of the disposal
group of HK$18,305,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2014.

i

tH

(b)

e ISR MR

—HRFEANA=ZTHLEFE

FRRBFE

ECEER
ExE8E®

K&

—ZE-WEXA=TH
R—ZZE—WmFENA+TH A&
£ Eﬁiﬁ 3 % = AMission Win
International Limited (28 522 i%
ﬁ@@ﬂ@ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

2a)) ([BHER]D) 22EHK
""T) I —MmEE W ([
D  REZWBE A5EEHE
EREEBRIEBRARLRENE
NEl ([EIEEE]) 2100%0 A HE
m((HEETBEE])  BREA
48,000,000/ 7t * 5 & S 1E K
LA % & B A% 10 490.25838 Tt 2 B 1T
18 BE % 1 % 17186,046,5000% #7 A%
D (TRERDD 2ARIHFA
EJEI

RZE—WNE~NA=TH HE&E
LEEEPDRTHK  MBERT=
BRAREHEZEEEERLEE
&E@EE%“*Z“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ﬁEZﬁ SEEENRBE"
FEMBRARKAD %iﬂ
ﬁﬁﬁ%Z%@@ﬁ@?@ﬁﬁ
EXEAMER ZBREEINE - B
ELEBEEHENBERRER T
—mFLtRA=+—HBREK-2%F
BOERZIRE Rk B (Z
T-MELA=+—RH)  RERK
2z~ FER D> £29,396,000%
T Al HESBZIERBAE
8 {E18,305,0008 B R E = =
T-—NFEANA=+HILEFEZHE
SRERNER -
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36. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL 36. S HECEBREARSE

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE HENEER S & )
(Continued)
(b) 30 June 2014 (Continued) (b) =Z—WEXA=+H#E)
Carrying amount  Impairment  Net amount
R E (& VERE! FE
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FHEL FHEL FEL
Assets 5E
Property, plant and equipment — #% « iE k& #E

(note 15) (KfzE15) 737 (204) 533
Goodwill (note 16) e (Hit16) 12,039 (12,039) -
Other infangible assets EmmpaE (Hi17)

(note 17) 21,844 (6,062) 15,782
Inventories & 38 - 38
Trade receivables EWE 5% 2,794 - 2,794
Tax refundable MR E 109 - 109
Prepayments, deposits and BARE B2k

other receivables H b fE YR IE 2,486 - 2,486
Cash, bank balances and RBe - RITEBREFR

deposits 10,646 - 10,646
Total assets of the disposal HHEZESBGEEARE

group classified as HEEELE

held for sale 50,693 (18,305) 32,388

(note 6)
(KI&E6)
Liabilities afE
Other payables and accruals Hitn B HIERESBE 443 - 443
Deferred revenue RIEY = 2,549 - 2,549
Total liabilities directly HEBEARELENEERR

associated with assets BHARRE

classified as held for sale 2,992 - 2,992
Net assefs of the disposal group #HiHiEEE 2 FEE 47,701 (18,305) 29,396
The fair values less costs to sell A F & 85 & KA 29,396

1 38 DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRAER 1 Al
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Such leases are negotiated for the terms ranging from
one to three years.

At 30 June 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second fo fifth years, EEZFERF
inclusive (BHEEEME)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had contingent
liabilities not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of discounted sales
invoices to a bank without recourse of approximately
RMB11,484,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,333,000) (2014: RMB7,082,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,828,000)).

Except for the above mentioned and those detailed
in note 40 fo the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any significant confingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.

The Company

At 30 June 2015, the Company had contingent
liabilities in respect of corporate unlimited guarantees
for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries.
At the end of the reporting period, HK$10,000,000
(2014: HK$10,000,000) of such facilities was utilised
by a subsidiary. The directors have assessed and
considered that the cost of the corporate guarantee
was immaterial fo the Company.

37.

38.

REHN R

AEERREERORHERETFHAE
MERBIES - MHE2NEAREN
F-E=%-

RZT—RFAA=Z+H  BRBETATHE
RERY  AREARATERIMNZR
REEMEEERBET

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-FfF —T—mEF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FET FHET
7,357 7. 5]Ii2
9.270 2,953
16,627 10,465
XAREE
R EE

BHIEF-Z-—HFXA=+TH KX&EEMA
—HRTHBEEEBERELNREDH
EEHELN11,484,000ARE (TEHR
14,333,000% 7T ) (=& — 4 : 7,082,000
AR (#r& # /58,828,000 L)) * &K
FEEYBAGAYBREDEE-

B Lt sk iR & B B WK MEE40 - R F
—HFERA=+HEM-_ZT-—NEA=F
B ARERBEFNEK-

AT

RZZE-—RAFRNA=Z+RH KATA#BET
MEBARMMERZBITHERMKERSE
NREERMAEXABE RIMEHR - F
B8 K&~ 7 2 8 F10,000,000% 7T (= F
— /g4 : 10,000,000 L) v g & FH - &
EEERBRARERAELANERL A
BEXR-
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39.

40.

DX.com Holdings Limited

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group had the following fransactions with related
parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

MEZERAXNZ
BEERM

Total employee benefits paid to
key management personnel

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

On 16 August 2012, the plaintiff (the "Plaintiff”), Klipsch
Group, Inc., filed a suit in the federal district court
(the "Court”) in the United States (the “U.S.") against
certain defendants, including one of the online sales
platforms (the “Subject Domain”) of the Group, in
respect of (i) frademark counterfeiting; (ii) frademark
infringement; and (iii) false designation of origin (the
“Litigation”). The Plaintiff claimed that certain products
(the “Klipsch-Branded Items”) were registered by them
in the U.S. and that infringing Klipsch-Branded Items
had been sold to customers in the U.S. via the Subject
Domain. The Plaintiff sought damages, attorneys’ fees
and sanctions. Hence, the Plaintiff instructed Paypal to
freeze US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,600,000) (the
"Frozen Amount”) from the Group’s Paypal account
on 27 August 2012,

On 21 September 2012, the Group filed sales
documents with the Court indicating that the
sales amount (the “Infringing Sales Amount”) of
the infringing Klipsch-Branded Items intfo the U.S.
amounted to less than US$700. The Court considered
that the Frozen Amount was excessive and
accordingly, the Court entered an order reducing
the Frozen Amount from US$2,000,000 to US$20,000
(equivalent to HK$156,000) on 11 October 2012. The
Plaintiff asserted in December 2012 that the Subject
Domain continued to sell additional Klipsch-Branded
ltems. The Group filed additional sales documents
establishing that the revenues derived from sales into
the U.S. of the additional Klipsch-Branded Items were
less than US$125.

| DX.comiZRER A A
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BEEALRS R&ERR

AEBNFRNRBMEALITINATRS :

JiEE]

AEBEFEEBABZHSE

2015 2014
—ZE—EEF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FET
5,707 8,907

FHESHEe cHBCHEREAMBRE
B8 -

o A

RZZT—=F/)\A+7XH FEKlipsch
Group, Inc(.[RE D BLOBERMEE : (i)
BB IERE - R (i) E R 18 F R E 72 & A
A RE ([ ]) B #8 @ fe kB (AR )
HETHE (RERAEEEP — @R EH
EFE(HEAZRE])) RBFA(HK
A o REBRE REEEEIMETE
@ ([Klipschan B E @ 1) » & #Klipsch
mEEMEEAREAZAEETER
ZEP B RESKIBERE - A
BREEH Bt RERZZT—ZF/)\A
Tttt BETEEREASEBEEERR
2,000,000 7t (48 & #15,600,0007% 7T )
(MREERED -

RZBE-——FAA-+—H AEEEE
REZXHEXH BEEAXBEZRE
Klipschim i# & m 2 5 & 88 ([RRIEER )
NR700ETT - A EBEIRECHER
BwE Bt RZE—Z—F+A+—8"
B 98 < % R 4 & #8 $12,000,000% 7T R
2> 220,0003% 7T (185 71156,000/% 7T) -
RER-ZZB-——F+-AEBREAZH
1o 48 48 85 & FH SMKlipschm W & @ » A&
BERERBEIMEEXS  BEHEXEZ
#SKlipschin EE mE £ 2 WA T 2125
XL
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LITIGATION (Continued)

On 3 December 2013 the Plaintiff filed an amended
complaint naming EPRO E-commerce Limited ("EPRO
EComm”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
that operates the Subject Domain as a defendant in
place of the Subject Domain, and naming as fictitious
entities other domains operated by EPRO EComm.

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as
to United States laws on 12 August 2014 that the
United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York (the "District Court”) entered an order
temporarily restraining the use of US$5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$39,000,000) (the “Restrained Sum”)
in the bank accounts and other financial accounts
of EPRO EComm (in addition to the Frozen Amount
of US$20,000 (equivalent to HK$156,000)). A hearing
regarding the asset restraining order was completed
on 11 February 2015 (U.S. time) but the District Court
has not yet made a ruling following the hearing. The
Company will make further announcement as and
when appropriate.

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) have
exercised their due care in assessing the financial
impact in respect of the legal costs and claims, if any,
of the Litigation. Taking info account of the amount
of the Restrained Sum and the possible legal and
professional costs to be incurred, the Company has
made a sufficient provision for the Litigation at the
year ended 30 June 2015. Since the Litigation is still
on-going, the Directors would contfinue to exercise
their due care in monitoring the progress of the
Litigation and would assess the adequacy of provision
for the Litigation and the financial impact to the
Group as and when appropriate.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has the following events:

(a) Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6
August 2015, the shareholders of the Company
resolved to change the domicile of the
Company from Cayman Islands fo Bermuda.

(b) As detailed in note 36(a) to the consolidated

financial statements, on 21 April 2015, the
Company entered info an agreement for the
disposal of 100% equity interest in EPRO (BVI)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (except for EPRO
Systems Limited) at a consideration of HK$40
million, subject to upward adjustments with a
maximum consideration of HK$120 million (the
"EPRO BVI Disposal”). The EPRO BVI Disposal
was completed subsequent to the end of the
reporting period on 31 August 2015.

40.

41.

Ei/NE )

RIZB—=F+"A=R RERIE(E
RERF BARBZE2ENBARSEE
FRABERLR(ZEEFEHK]) (AL
BREAZEE) BATEA  UREBER
EAZHEE UK FEEFEEMEEL
HtEZMREBER -

ARAR-_F—WFENA+ -_AEEXE
ERITEEREREN  XBEAOMAE
& AR (TREER]) BEEGHm< - B
R 4% £ #120,000% 7T (18 %5 7#156,000/%
T2 MERRGEHZEEFHE
RTTRR P I HoAth 81 #5448 Bk P 95,000,000
7t (85 7439,000,000% 7T) /) 3E ([ %
ZEHeRE]) - AREEERHS ZRAR
E-RF A+ —BrK (ZEKR) - #
& AR M AR A B AE L EOR - AR
AR E SR RE - SERAM

i &

ARREE([EF])) CERBAFEZF
RELEZAHEMERRE(NEWEE)
ZHBEE KERXEGESHEZEER
ARESELZERREZER BLE_F
—hAFERNA=ZtTHLFE AQFAEH
ZABREL T REME - BN ZFRDIEE
TET EESUEEERERAFNHE
' AR EE SR AR BEER
BRAREAEEZWIEZE -

BEHRREE

WIREEIHR % - REEE A TEE -

(@) REHIRER AQTRES
SE BN SRS Y M
AN M mE S S
FRAERE -

(o) B A B R E K E36(a)2

HE RZE-—RAFMNA=-+—
B ARA@lslL— M K
40,000,000/ 7T (AT ¥ LA &5
A {8 A£120,000,000% 7T) 2 R &
HE—BARAZE2ENRBRF
EPRO (BVI) Limited & E 2545 K B
RAI(RTHEZRRBERARF) Z
100%8% # (3% [EPRO BVIE & ]) -
ZEPRO BVIH &R &E B RE =
E—AFNA=t+—HEK -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

42. eI BEZDE

RIEHAR - BRCBTEZREANT

Financial Assets STREE
Group
458
Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
ROTEH\BEZEREE
Designated as
such upon Held-to-maturity Loans and Available-forsale
initial recognifion Held for trading investments receivables financial assets Total
RIS EARER KR KENERY EAREYR It EEREE &3t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%3-1F “%-0%F Z%-3F _3-F Z%-31%f -%-0F Z%-Bf _5-0F Z%-RF _5-PF Z%-RF TN
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tér TAr TEm TEr  TEn TEn  TER  TEr  TEx TEAr  TEn  TEn
Trade receivables - - - 393 93381 - - 393 93381
Financial assefs included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables - - - 68,905 9,217 - 68905 9,217
Available-for-sales
investment - - - - - - 38,698 - 38,698 -
Equify investments at
fair value through profit
or loss RERE 1830 - - - - - - - 1830
Derivafive financial fTEemEE
insfruments - 512 - - - - - 512
Pledged deposits BEARR - - - - - 19983 19728 - 19983 19728
Cash and cash equivalents  F£RB£EEEE - - - 63,741 88,293 - 63,741 88,293
- 2,302 - 153,022 297619 38,698 191,720 299,961
Company
L
Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
ROTEHABRZEREE
Designated as
such upon Held-fo-maturity Loans and Available-forsale
initial recognifion Held for trading investments receivables financial assets Total
RIS EARER KR KEHERE ERREYR It EEREE &3t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-RF -E-IE ZB-FF _Z-0F Z%-FF _E-Q0F Z2-RF _E-0F Z§-FF _E-DPF Z8-RF CE-QE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tér TAr TRz TEr  TRn TEx TER  TEr TRz TAr  TEn  TEn
Due from subsidiaries
and a structured entity - - - - 74118 126,077 - - AN 126,077
Availablefor-sales - - - - - 38,698 38,698 -
investment
Financial assefs included
in prepayments, deposits v
and other receivables SHEE - - - - - 529 300 - - 529 300
Cosh and cash equivalents R4 RE2SHEEE - - - - - - 40990 40620 - - 40990 40620
- - - 115637 166997 38,698 154,335 166,997
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. €T B2 9% #)

(Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Trade payables T8 HEH
Financial liabilifies included in -~ A fERFER
other payables and acoruols B EECEBER

Interestoearing bank borrowing & 8 H1TEH
Note payables EREE

Financial liabilities

Due fo a subsidiary NG
Financiol liabilifies included in -~ st AE ftERZER

other poyables and accruals  EHHAEZEBER
Note payables ERZE

EWMEE#E)

Group
558

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

ROVEFAREZEHAR
Designated as such upon Financial liabilities at
initial recognition Held for trading amortised cost Total
RISBRIREE RERE RBEAASIRERER At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
c8-if _F-PpF -R-EF _T-0F Z8-If _T-MF ZB-EF _R[OF
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR TERL TR TERL TR T Tin T
- - - - 15,215 16,063 15,215 16,063
- - - - 23,808 96,458 23,808 96,458
- - - - 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
- - - 81,700 - 81,700 =
- - - - 130728 122521 130723 122,521
TREE
Company
A28
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
ROVEFAREZEHAR
Designated as such upon Financial liabilities at
initial recognition Held for trading amortised cost Total
MISEARERE KERE RBERASIRERER it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
c%-3f -F-PF -%-1F -F-pF Z8-1fF -T-MF ZR-RF -TOF
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
TR TEn TR TERL TERL TEn Tikn T
- - - - 10513 10,040 10,513 10,040
- - - - 1,904 2,309 1,904 2,309
- - - 81,700 - 81,700 =
- - - - 94117 12,349 94117 12,349
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values,
are as follows:

Group

Financial assets HEEE

Available-for-sales investment NHNERE

Equity investments at fair value through RATEBIARR
profit or loss L ETRARERE

Derivative financial instruments fTEeBEE

Company

Financial assets HBEE

Available-for-sales investment NHHERE

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZRE R A 7
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43. BB T ERFEERDY

BERB&

AEHEFBETAREEREAFEESE
BEERMNWEAERAFEENT

&
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE NYERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—3-%f oM ZE-I1% —Z2-mE
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TR THATL TR TATL
38,698 - 38,698 -
- 1,830 - 1,830
- 512 - 512
AN
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE LYEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“®-5f “T-mE Zg-E1F —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TERT THT TR TR
38,698 - 38,698 -
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. IR T EATEERAF
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEER®
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of EEEDFH Ei&iﬁA“@_Iﬁa E}Eﬁ
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade WEZ EBRESER ;T ATEMR
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, ?ﬁ(ﬁ&,ﬁ@féuﬁzmlﬁmﬁﬁkﬁﬁ d—)\ﬁ’gé
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities NESEZNEMENKEREAEED
included frade payables and other payables and MBAEATEMR ZEITAENATEE
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts HEEEESE  TERRNZSITASEH
largely due to the short ferm maturities of these A E|H o
instruments.
Fair value hierarchy NEEBEEDR
The following table illustrates the fair value TRINRAEBHETENAFEBEF:E
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial [E 4% -
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value RAFEEFENEE
Group rEE
Fair value measurement using
AFREHBER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3)
WERTS BEXTBR EXTUER
5E BARE BARE Total
(5-8%) (5=8) (F=4) @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-1% -I-QMF ZE-Rf -F-0F Z%-1F I Z3-1fF “I-MF
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS$'000
TR Tk TER TR TR TiEn TER Tk
Available-for-sales AEHERE
investment 38,698 - - - - - 38,698 -
Equity investments BAYEEHARR
at fair value through ZEMRAARERE
profit or loss - 1,830 - - - - - 1.830
Derivative financial TEepEE
instruments - - 5 512 = - - 512
Company ¥ NN
Fair value measurement using
AV EEFEER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3)
WERTS EAUBER Ep NS 1
3E BARE BARE Total
(E-%) (E=4) (B=4) @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-5% _T-QMF Z¥-Ff _F-MF Z%-FFfF _T-QMF ZB-1fF _T-MF
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS$'000
TR Tin TER TR TR TR TER T
Available-for-sales MEHERE
investment 38,698 - - - - - 38,698 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise inferest-bearing bank borrowing
and other payables and accruals. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities (e.g. trade receivables
and trade payables), which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives
are set ouf in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as
at 30 June 2015 and 2014. The Group’s results and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as
the sales and purchases of the Group were mainly
tfransacted in United States dollars ("USD"), Renminbi
("RMB"), Australian dollars (*AUD"), Canadian dollars
("CAD"), EURO dollars (*EURO"), and Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD"). Approximately 99% (2014: 98%) of
the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating
units making the sale, and almost 98% (2014: 98%) of
costs are denominated in the units” other functional
currency.

| DX.comiZRER A A
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M EREEBRERBR

BROTETAN AEEZTEEHIAR
AR ZRITERREMEN KR ARE
ﬁﬁwiﬁ\”ﬂIEZIEEE’JTJ%KEI
ZEBEEET AEERZEEM TR
BENAE (WEREIERRENES )TJE
BERHEXBEL -

AEED
w8 = L B

MITEMELEZFERRBRRE S
CHNERE - EERBR KRR
PESRAR EFFRILBDERERS
ZERBRZBE  ZEBERBPARMOT o K
SEETAETEAE L G BERHNGS
M mEME2.4 -

ReERErERER
ARER-FT-BER-F-MEAA=T
A MR IR LB EASMERER
B FEMEARDLERBER SR
ENTETHHERDYE -

I L By
HRAEBZHERRBITEAET ([%
T CARBE(TARE]) BT (R
o))~z (Toel) ~ BT (TBoT)) k&
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BB EEEERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&
Foreign currency risk (Continued) G R B (2)

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the exchange
rate of USD was rather stable. Approximately 80% of
the Group’s sales are denominated in this currency
(2014: approximately 88%).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates of AUD, CAD and RMB
to HKD, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss before tax.

REE-Z-—AFNA=THLFER"
ELZEXRBERRBE  AEBH80%Z
HEUAZSEEREE (ZE—DOF: 4
88%) ©

TRETEZHEMCEREF IR ZBER
T REEZBRBATE RN RS HRER
TT AR AR E R HIE S IR A g &
G2 BRBE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity*
B/ BREAER ‘EEm/
(T&)  #m/ (BD) (AD) *
% HKS$ 000 HK$' 000
% FiEx FiET
30 June 2015 ZE-HAFXAZ=TH
If HKD weakens against AUD i 78 7T KR T 855 5 4 -
If HKD strengthens against AUD AT R TER 5) 4) -
If HKD weakens against CAD BT E MTESS 5 (98) -
If HKD strengthens against CAD BT IR (5) 98 -
If HKD weakens against RMB {8 7L A R 5455 5 (4,513) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB TR ARKEER 5) 4,513 -
30 June 2014 —Z-MEXA=TH
If HKD weakens against AUD BT R TS 5 - -
If HKD strengthens against AUD i 78 7T 34 R T 5 5) - -
If HKD weakens against CAD AT H T eSS 5 3) -
If HKD strengthens against CAD i 78 70 4 T 5 5) 3 -
If HKD weakens against RMB WETHAREES 5 (8,046) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB B TEAREHES (5) 8,046 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEERE BT
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DX.com Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group has no foreign exchange contracts
outstanding as at 30 June 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
entered into a forward currency confract with a bank
in the amount of USD8,300,000 to manage its foreign
exchange risk in view of continuing appreciation of
Renminbi. The forward confracts were matured in July
2014.

Credit risk

The Group frades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For fransactions that are not denominatfed in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale financial assets arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments.

Apart form e-commerce, the Group frades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. There is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

| DX.comiZRER A A
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BHERREEERERBE
()

HhEE B ()
R-F-REXA=+E  AEELHE
AR 2 EBINERLD -

BE-_Z-MFEFA=+HILEFEAN"
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. B RAKBEEEEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk REESERE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds AREEFRBEBRGESTA T AERAE
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool EeRpER HWITEZEEESHTAR
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments SREE(MEKESEZ) Z2HEBHANR
and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and TEFHEEZIRERE °
projected cash flows from operations.
Internally generated cash flows are the general NPELEZHEEREANERELESLZ
sources of funds fo finance the operations of the — KR - REB KEMDEITRIEIRFEH
Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities FMERFBEITREBFER AEEPRFTE
are subject to floating rates and are renewable FEEMRL  UHEREBETHTFEER
annually. The Group regularly reviews its major funding NENEFHBET AEBEEHEBHR
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial AMHBACERAREER  UgEREeZ
resources to meet its financial obligations. The Group BEY WEBRBRITER  UER
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by maintaining RHREFE -AEEZRBILEREE
committed credit lines and sufficient bank deposits BEZHEREERRITRENNDHRES K
to meet its short term cash requirements. The Group’s TR ©
liquidity risk management includes making available
standby banking facilities and diversifying the funding
sources.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RMEBRR  AEB LB EREDET
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the KRB RIEZ BB R T :
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group
A5@
3to less
On demand Less than 3 months than 12 months 110 5 years Total
RERER PR=EA ZEAZHRT=fA -Z1f @it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“g-1f -—%-MF ZB-F% —Z-NF Z%-EFf _—Z-PNF ZB-FF _Z-MF Z-¥-IF C—Z-|F
HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$" 000
T#x T TR T THIT Tt F#x iR TR T
Trade payables g - - 15,215 - - 16,063 - - 15,215 16,063
Other payables and TR
accruals ik 6,381 - 11,432 - 5,995 96,458 - - 23,808 96,458
Interest-bearing FERORER
bank borrowing - - 10,000 10,000 - - - - 10,000 10,000
Note payable ERZE - - - - 81,700 - - - 81,700 -
6,381 - 36,647 10,000 87,695 112,521 - - 130,723 122,521
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(&

RBETER &)

Mﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%

Company
Y|
3to less
On demand Less than 3 months than 12 months 110 5 years Total
RERER SR=EA ZEAZHRT=fA -Z1f @it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-Rf -T-ME ZE-RF “T-MF Z2-RE "2-QmF ZE-If TN ZB-Rf Q%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAL TER i TiEx TEL TER TAL TER TEL
Due to asubsidiary ~ ERKBAF 10,513 10,040 - - - - - - 10,513 10,040
Other payables and ~ EHERFER
accruals i afE = - 1,904 2,309 - - - - 1,904 2,309
Note payables ANESH - - - - 81,700 - - - 81,700 -
10,513 10,040 1,904 2,309 81,700 - - - 94,117 12,349
Equity price risk BREEZKRERER

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
no significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is fo safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders of issue
new shares.

DX.com Holdings Limited | DX.comiZiRER A d
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Year ended 30 June 2015 BE T —HF A=+ HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the fotal capital plus
net debtf. Net debt includes trade payables, other
payables and accruals, deposits received in advance,
deferred revenue, inferest-bearing bank borrowing less
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes equity aftributable to equity holders
of the Company. The gearing ratfios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

Trade payables EREZER
Other payables and accruals HMEMNRIBERESEE
Deposits received in advance iz
Deferred revenue IR %
Interest-bearing bank borrowing STRIRITER
Note payables AN
Less: Pledged deposits - BEEBER

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEER
Net Debt BB E

Equity attributable to equity holders #z#H A fEHE R

Total capital BE R

Capital and net debt BEARRERFE

Gearing ratio ERBELEX
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 45.

Certain comparative figures and items and balances
have been adjusted and reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 46.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
23 September 2015.

BHEREEERERBE
()

EXREE#)
AEBEFERERAGGBLE (UEEFER
NBERM EERFEAE) BERER-
EBFEBEENE SRR - HMENK
BREFAE BlEe  BENE K
BRITERCREERFRERS LIRS
ZEER) - BABERARARAREA
JEfLRER - RBMEMR - EABEL X
™

Group

AEME
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
25,188 16,063
67,808 135,962
7,845 13,204
- 455
10,000 10,000
81,700 -
(19.983) (19.728)
(63.741) (88,293)
108,817 67,663
116,559 152,819
116,559 152,819
225,376 220,482
48% 31%

EEREF

ETHEEFEEFLARREHRSR
NRARFEREZE2MNITH -

mEVBHmER2HE

FAaMBBRRER-_E-—HFALA_-_T+=
HEE=gERIRETE-
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-conftrolling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS
REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of other
infangible assets

Finance costs

Share of profit/(loss) of
associate

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing operations
Profit/(loss) for the year
from discontinued operation
Impairment of assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Aftributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

DX.com Holdings Limited

E3
LN
ERHERA

=7

L ONE €
BERDHHA
THER
BERE
EEVEERE

BERA
DEMERRZ B/
(B#)

BHE (BR) /&7
FEHER

RERRARELEEY
(BR)/BF
TEERER MBS

2BEN/ (BE)

BiHE 2 S ERRIE
BENAERE

FE(BR)/BH

AT&TIE
ARAHEEA
SFERES

BE RfER
FERES
BE#RE
AfEER

SRERES

DX.comiZ R B IR 1 7]

TXAARESAE AN REE EEREE
EBERFERERGE  HNAREAEEZEA
BEEEGEANBEE LEEEES, BHH
5 -

Year ended 30 June
BEAR=THLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
=F-5f% -T-mF  -T-=fF ZT-ZF ZT——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR THEL TR TEL TETL
(Re-stated) (Re-stated) (Re-stated) (Re-stated)
(&E31) (&) (&=31) (&=7)
749,660 1,166,050 1,241,329 1,284,889 -
(435,802) (678,639) (725,632) (715,335) -
313,858 487,411 515,697 569,554 -
4,023 707 519 1,012 12
(239,937) (346,416) (341,792) (371,708) -
(134,183) (178,660) (107.272) (48,6306) (3.802)
- - (10,436) - -
- - (19.260) - -
(1,528) (19) - (30) (4,084)
- (12) (40) 5 (23)
(57,767) (36.989) 37,416 150,197 (7,897)
(409) (6,799) (13,077) (26,123) -
(58,176) (43,788) 24,339 124,074 (7.897)
7,658 (8,583) 12,487 7,683 79,347
(36,394) (18,305) - - -
(28,736) (26,888) 12,487 7,683 79,347
(86,912) (70,676) 36,826 131,757 71,450
(87,003) (70.910) 37,105 131,490 71,450
91 234 (279) 267 -
(86,912) (70,676) 36,826 131,757 71,450
350,599 347,003 339,297 392,346 393,775
(234,040) (194,184) (119,103) (94,790) (31,435)
(1,039) (947) (1,532) (1.787) (1,500)
115,520 151,872 218,662 295,769 360,840







	Cover
	GEM
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Review of Operations
	Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Statement of Financial Position
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

